
 

SCFPD Agenda 05-16-2024 - Page 1 
 

                                                  Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
 3324 Topeka Street 

 Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 Fax: (209) 869-7475 

Email: admin@scfpd.us 
Www.scfpd.us 

 
 

Greg Bernardi 
President 
BOS District 1 

Steven Stanfield 
Vice President 
BOS District 1 
 

Jonathan 
Goulding 
Director 
BOS District 2 

Charles E. Neal 
Director 
Riverbank 

Brandon Rivers 
Director 
Waterford 
 

AGENDA  

May 16, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 REGULAR AND CLOSED SESSION MEETINGS OF THE  

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Station 26 Meeting Room, 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, CA 

(THE AGENDA PACKET IS POSTED AT EACH SCFPD LOCATION AND AT WWW.SCFPD.US)   
 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

President Bernardi 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Bernardi 

3. INVOCATION 

 
Pastor Charles E. Neal with Riverbank Assembly of God Church   

 

4. ROLL CALL 

Board President:  Bernardi 
Board Vice President: Stanfield 
Director:   Goulding 
Director:   Neal 
Director:   Rivers 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – at this time, a Board Member may pull an item from the agenda 

 
 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – Declaration by Board of Director members who 
may have a conflict of Interest on any scheduled agenda item is to declare their conflict at this time. 

 
 

7. PRESENTATION/ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 



 

SCFPD Agenda 05-16-2024 - Page 2 
 

Item 7.A:  Employee Recognition of Years of Service 
 
Item 7.B:  New Hires/Promotions/Retiree Announcements 
 
Item 7.C:  Pinning of Newly Promoted Employees 

 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS- The Board of Directors welcomes participation in Board meetings.  Matters 
under the jurisdiction of the Board that are not posted on the agenda may be addressed by the public.  
California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posed agenda, unless 
the Board determines that it is an emergency or other situation specified in Government Code Section 
54954.2. Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes per individual.  Please make your comments 
directly to SCFPD Board President.  Comments will be accepted via Teleconference. 

 

ACTION CALENDAR 
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS- All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted upon by one motion unless otherwise requested by an individual Board Member or public for 
special consideration.  

 

Item 9.A: Minutes of the April 18, 2024 Board of Directors Regular Meeting. 
 
 Recommendation:  Approve Minutes of April 18, 2024, by 

Consent Action. 
 
Item 9.B: Acceptance of Warrants (Check Register) – April 2024 
 
   Recommendation:  Accept by Consent Action 
 
Item 9.C:  Acceptance of Financial Reports – April 2024 
 
   Recommendation:  Accept by Consent Action  
 
 Consideration of Removed of Consent Item(S) 

 

10. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 
No Discussion Items scheduled. 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
No Public Hearing Items scheduled. 

 

12. ACTION ITEMS  

 
Item 12.A: Special Benefit Assessment FY 2024/2025 Rate – Review, Discuss and 

Consider adoption of Resolution 2024-002 ordering the levy and 
collection charges within Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
Special Benefit Assessment with 3% increase. 



 

SCFPD Agenda 05-16-2024 - Page 3 
 

 
    

Recommendation: By Roll Call Vote, Adopt Resolution 2024-002, 
Ordering and Levy and Collection of Charges within the Stanislaus 
Consolidated Fire Protection District Special Benefit Assessment Rate 
with 3% increase. 

 

Item 12.B: Stanislaus County Wire Transfer Authorization – Review, Discuss and 
Consider adoption of Resolution 2024-003 authorizing the Fire Chief, 
Deputy Chief, and Battalion Chief to authorize wire transfers from 
Stanislaus County. 

    
Recommendation: By Roll Call Vote, Adopt Resolution 2024-003, 
authorizing the Fire Chief, Deputy Chief, and Battalion Chief to authorize 
wire transfers from Stanislaus County. 

 

Item 12.C: Station 22 Exterior Painting Bids- Open sealed bids, review, discuss and 
award bid to contractor for the painting of Station 22. 

    
Recommendation: The District recommends the review, discussion and 
awarding of bid to Lancaster Painting for $16,500.00. 

 

Item 12.D: Station 23 Exterior Painting Bids- Open sealed bids, review, discuss and 
award bid to contractor for the painting of Station 23. 

    
Recommendation: The District recommends the review, discussion and 
awarding of bid to Lancaster Painting for $14,488.00. 

 

Item 12.E: Station 26 Bathroom Remodel Bids- Open sealed bids, review, discuss 
and award bid to contractor for the remodel of the Station 26 bathroom. 

    
Recommendation: The District recommends the review, discussion and 
awarding of bid to California Building Structures Inc. for $55,000.00. 

 

 
13. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
1. Correspondence –  

 
No Correspondence items  

 
2. Written Staff Reports –  

 
Item 13.2.A: Monthly Call Log 



 

SCFPD Agenda 05-16-2024 - Page 4 
 

Item 13.2.B:   Training 

Item 13.2.C:   Local 3399 

 
3. Verbal Reports – 

Item 13.3.A:   Fire Chief – Monthly Verbal Board Report, 

Item 13.3.B:    Capital Improvements – (Bernardi/Stanfield) 

Item 13.3.C:   Finance – (Goulding/Neal) 

Item 13.3.D:    Personnel – (Rivers/Stanfield)  

Item 13.3.E:  Fire Advisory with Modesto Fire Dept.- (Goulding/Bernardi) 

 
 

4.  Directors Comments – At this time, Board Members may verbally make individual 
announcements, report briefly on their activities, or request an item be place on a future agenda. 

 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION 

  
Item 14.A:  Conference with Labor Negotiators (Government Code Section 54957.6) 

Agency Designated Representative: Patrick Clark, Consultant; 
Employee Organization: SCFPD Firefighters Local 3399 

 

15. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 
 

16. CLOSED SESSION REPORT  

 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the SCFPD Board of Directors is June 20th, at 6:00 p.m. in 
the Station 26 Meeting Room, located at 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, CA 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Amanda McCormick, Clerk of the Board of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, do 
hereby declare that the foregoing agenda for the Regular and Closed Session meetings of the Board 
of Director has been posted at the administrative offices, District website of the Stanislaus Consolidated 
Fire Protection District at least 72 hours prior to the meeting date and will also be posted at each of the 
District Fire Stations 
 
Dated: May 13, 2024       Time:3:00 p.m. 
 
 
  Amanda McCormick /s/  
Amanda McCormick 
Board Clerk 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 



 

SCFPD Agenda 05-16-2024 - Page 5 
 

ADA Compliance Statement: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Board Clerk at (209) 869-7470 or boardclerk@scfpd.us 
Notification 72 hours prior to meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangement to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting.  



 

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
 3324 Topeka Street 

 Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 Fax: (209) 869-7475 

Email: admin@scfpd.us 
Www.scfpd.us 

 
 

Greg Bernardi 
President 

BOS District 1 

Steven Stanfield 
Vice President 
BOS District 1 

Jonathan Goulding 
Director 

BOS District 2 

Charles E. Neal 
Director 

Riverbank 

Brandon Rivers 
Director 

Waterford 
 

 
MINUTES  

Thursday, April 18, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Station 26 Meeting Room, 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, CA 
(THE AGENDA PACKET IS POSTED AT EACH SCFPD LOCATION AND AT WWW.SCFPD.US)   

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
The Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District met this date at 6:00 p.m. in 
the Station 26 Meeting Room with President Bernardi presiding and calling the 
meeting to order. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Neal.  
 

3. INVOCATION 

 
Pastor Charles E. Neal with Riverbank Assembly of God Church gave the 
invocation.  
 

4. ROLL CALL 

 
Board Clerk Called the roll: 
 
Present: 
President:    Bernardi 
Director:   Rivers 
Director:    Neal  
Director:   Goulding 
 
Absent: 
Vice President:  Stanfield 

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 9.A



 

 

Staff Present: 
Fire Chief:   Tietjen  
District Attorney:  Splendorio 
Clerk:    McCormick 
Deputy Chief:   Bray 
   

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – at this time, a Board Member may pull an item from the agenda. 

 
Motion by Director Rivers, seconded by Director Goulding to approve the agenda. 
Passed by roll call vote   

 
AYES:  4 Directors: Bernardi, Rivers, Neal, Goulding 
NOES:  0 Director:  
ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    
ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield 
 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – Declaration by Board of Director members who 
may have a conflict of Interest on any scheduled agenda item is to declare their conflict at this time. 

None was declared. 

7. PRESENTATION/ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

Chief Tietjen acknowledged the following; 

      Employee Years of Service  

 Firefighter Robert Etcheverry- 1 year 

 Firefighter/Paramedic Daniel Perales- 1 year 

 Firefighter Niko Lombrana- 1 year 

 Admin Assistant Brittney Withrow- 2 years 

Employee Promotions 

 Corey Wilson- Promoted to Captain as of 4/26 

 Josh Leslie- Promoted to Engineer as of 4/26 

Employee Retirements 

 Captain Donald Hankins resigned after 22 years of service 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS - The Board of Directors welcomes participation in Board meetings.  Matters 
under the jurisdiction of the Board that are not posted on the agenda may be addressed by the public.  
California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posed agenda, unless 
the Board determines that it is an emergency or other situation specified in Government Code Section 
54954.2. Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes per individual.  Please make your comments 
directly to SCFPD Board President.  Comments will be accepted via Teleconference. 

 
 No Public Comments  

 

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
4/0/0/1



 

 

9. CONSENT ITEMS  

 

Item 9.A: Minutes of the March 21, 2024, Board of Directors Regular Meeting. 
 
Item 9.B: Acceptance of Warrants (Check Register) – March 2024 
 
Item 9.C:  Acceptance of Financial Reports – March 2024  

 
Motion by Director Neal, seconded by Director Rivers to approve the consent calendar. 
Passed by roll call vote .  

 
AYES:  4 Directors: Bernardi, Rivers, Neal, Goulding 
NOES:  0 Director:  
ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    
ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield 
 
 

10. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

No Discussion Items  
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 

No Public Hearing Items 
 

12. ACTION ITEMS 

  No Public Hearing Items 
 

13. COMMUNICATIONS 

Item 13.3.A – Fire Chief’s Verbal Report 

- Chief Tietjen provided a verbal report for the month of March.  

Item 13.3.B – Capital Improvements 

- No Report Given  

Item 13.3.C – Finance Committee 

- No Report Given 

Item 13.3.D – Personnel Committee 

- No Report Given 

Item 13.3.E – Fire Advisory Committee with Modesto Fire Department 

- No Report Given 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION 

 

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
4/0/0/1



 

 

Item 14.A: Conference with Labor Negotiators: Patrick Clark 
 Agency Designated Representative: Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief 
 Employee Organization: Local 3399, BC’s, Unrepresented 
 

15. CLOSED SESSION - Report 

Closed session began at 6:11 pm and ended at 7:45 pm with no reportable action.  
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business the Board adjourned at 7:45 pm.  

 
 

ATTEST:       
 

Amanda McCormick  /s/                      
Amanda McCormick, Clerk of the Board   

 



amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 9.B







amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 9.C





















 
  
 
 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT     ITEM 12.A 
 

TO:  President Bernardi and Members of the Board of Directors       
FROM: Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief    
SUBJECT: Special Benefit Assessment Rate for FY 2024-2025, Resolution No. 2024-002 Ordering the Levy 

and Collection Charges Within SCFPD  
 
DATE: May 16, 2024 
 
BACKGROUND 
The District Board of Directors is required to annually review and take the appropriate actions to set the rates 
for the District’s Special Benefit Assessment program. The Special Benefit Assessment, which started in Fiscal 
Year 2005/2006, continues to be the most prominent and secure revenue source for the District. The assessment 
may be levied by the District Board for an indefinite term as long as the services are being provided. The 
Special Benefit Assessment provides the majority of the revenue needed by the District to provide required and 
expected services to the communities we serve.  
 
The proposed rates calculated by Willdan Financial Services are based on flat rate increases of  1%, 1.5%, 2% 
and 3 (Exhibit A). Staff is recommending the District adopt the 3% increase.   
 
Each year, the maximum assessment rates can be increased by an annual inflation adjustment with approval 
from the Board of Directors. The inflation adjustment allows the maximum assessment rates to be increased 
annually by the greater of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, San Francisco-Oakland-
Hayward, CA (CPI), or 3%.  
 
Staff has also included the Assessment Project Timeline for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  The project timeline 
depicts the various steps that are required by all agencies involved for the processing and submission of the 
District’s FY 2024-2025 Special Benefit Assessment rate on the county property tax roll. (Exhibit “B”) 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
A 3% increase in the special assessment rate would generate an estimated additional $263,333.77 in Special 
Benefit Assessment revenue for the District. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Board consider taking formal action to adopt Resolution 2024-002 reflecting a _3_% increase for FY 2024-
2025.  Staff recommends of the Board adopt Resolution 2024-002 to ensure the District stays within the project 
timeline with all involved parties to complete the required work moving forward with the Special Benefit 
Assessment steps to meet Stanislaus County’s final deadline to be placed on the county tax bill. Please see 
attached Resolution No. 2024-002, Ordering the Levy and Collection Assessments within the SCFPD Special 
Benefit Assessment Rate for FY 2024-2025. 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 

Fax: (209) 869-7475 
www.scfpd.us  

 

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 12.A



Rate Table

Property Type Parcel/Units/Sq. Ft

23/24 Applied 

Rates

1% 

increase

1.5% 

increase

2% 

increase

2.5% 

increase

3% 

increase

24/25

Maximum Rates 
(1)

23/24

Maximum 

Rates

Public Assembly/Educational/Institutional 106                           $624.64 $630.88 $634.00 $637.13 $640.25 $643.37 $771.07 $748.62

Residential (1 and 2 family dwellings) 12,509                      $322.10 $325.32 $326.93 $328.54 $330.15 $331.76 $397.67 $386.09

Residential (3 or more living units) 2,302                        $261.67 $264.28 $265.59 $266.90 $268.21 $269.51 $322.99 $313.59

Stores and Offices 3,618,460                 $0.1182 $0.1194 $0.1200 $0.1206 $0.1212 $0.1217 $0.1456 $0.1414

Industry 32,281,048               $0.0960 $0.0970 $0.0974 $0.0979 $0.0984 $0.0989 $0.1157 $0.1124

Agricultural / Vacant Land 2,024                        $75.56 $76.31 $76.69 $77.07 $77.44 $77.82 $93.35 $90.63

Estimated Levy at various Rates

Property Type Parcel/Units/Sq. Ft

23/24

Levy

Increased by 

1% Rates

Increased by 

1.5% Rates

Increased by 

2% rates

Increased by 

2.5% rates

Increased by 

3% rates

24/25 Maximum 

Tax 
(1)

Public Assembly/Educational/Institutional 106                           66,158.90          $66,873.28 $67,204.00 $67,535.78 $67,866.50 $68,197.22 $81,733.89

Residential (1 and 2 family dwellings)* 12,509                      4,028,665.72     4,069,427.88       4,089,567.37          4,109,706.86       $4,129,846.35 4,149,985.84      4,974,487.80      

Residential (3 or more living units) 2,302                        590,470.02        608,372.56          611,388.18             614,403.80          $617,419.42 620,412.02         743,528.85         

Stores and Offices 3,618,460                 427,700.32        431,971.74          434,106.63             436,241.53          $438,376.42 440,511.31         526,847.76         

Industry 32,281,048               3,098,979.11     3,129,647.60       3,145,142.51          3,160,637.41       $3,176,132.31 3,191,627.22      3,734,917.25      

Agricultural / Vacant Land 2,024                        152,933.44        154,451.44          155,220.56             155,989.68          $156,738.56 157,507.68         188,940.26         

Total Estimated Levy 8,364,907.51     $8,460,744.51 $8,502,629.25 $8,544,515.06 $8,586,379.56 $8,628,241.28 $10,250,455.82

*Includes 3 parcels charged at 50%.
(1) Estimating 3% until CPI Index is available.

FY 24/25 Estimated Levy

(1) The inflation adjustment for the Maximum Rate may not exceed the greater of i) the change in the prior year's U.S. Department of Labor, Consumer Price Index, All Items for the San Francisco, Oakland, San Jose area (CPI) for the month of April or ii) three percent 

(3%). Estimating 3% until CPI Index is available.

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Exhibit "A"



Target

Date

Friday, July 5, 2024

SCFPD changes/additions complete in GIS system. Send a separate list for all Lifelines 

approved for 50% reduction on assessments. – Notify Cal Cad that our changes are 

complete.

Friday, July 19, 2024 Cal Cad to upload the list to Willdan

Thursday, August 1, 2024 Willdan to have the New Assessment list back to SCFPD for review

Wednesday, August 7, 2024
SCFPD to review and make any additional corrections in the system. – Back to Cal Cad and 

Willdan for updates.

Thursday, August 15, 2024
WFS Submits Levy to Stanislaus County Auditor (Levy Tape, Resolutions and any other 

Documentation).

Thursday, August 22, 2024 WFS  submits Levy Corrections to the County for all taxable exceptions.

Monday, September 16, 2024 WFS provides SCFPD with an Applied Levy Summary.

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District

Project Timeline For Fiscal Year 2024-25

Project 

Tasks

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Exhibit "B"



Western Information Office

Bureau of Labor Statistics Geographic Information Western News Release

News Release Information
24-514-SAN
Tuesday, March 12, 2024

Contacts
Technical information:

(415) 625-2270
BLSinfoSF@bls.gov
www.bls.gov/regions/west
Media contact:

(415) 625-2270

Related Links
CPI historical databases

Consumer Price Index, San Francisco Area — February 2024
Area prices were up 1.5 percent over the past two months, up 2.4 percent from a year ago

Prices in the San Francisco area, as measured by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), advanced 1.5 percent for the two months ending in February
2024, the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics reported today. (See table A.) Regional Commissioner Chris Rosenlund noted that the February increase was influenced by higher
prices for shelter. (Data in this report are not seasonally adjusted. Accordingly, month-to-month changes may reflect seasonal influences.)

Over the last 12 months, the CPI-U advanced 2.4 percent. (See chart 1 and table A.) Food prices advanced 2.4 percent. Energy prices advanced 4.7 percent, largely the result of
an increase in the price of electricity. The index for all items less food and energy advanced 2.2 percent over the year. (See table 1.)

View Chart Data
Food
Food prices advanced 1.6 percent for the two months ending in February. (See table 1.) Prices for food at home rose 2.4 percent, with higher prices in four of the six grocery
categories. Prices for food away from home increased 0.6 percent for the same period.

Over the year, food prices advanced 2.4 percent. Prices for food at home advanced 2.3 percent since a year ago, with higher prices in all six grocery categories. Prices for food
away from home rose 3.7 percent.

Energy

U.S. BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS

Search Western Region Go

Western Home

Western Geography

Western Subjects

Western Archives

Contact Western

5/6/24, 10:22 AM Consumer Price Index, San Francisco Area — February 2024 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_sanfrancisco.htm 1/4

https://www.bls.gov/
https://www.bls.gov/regions/home.htm
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/home.htm
mailto:BLSinfoSF@bls.gov
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west
https://www.bls.gov/cpi/data.htm
javascript:void(0);
https://www.bls.gov/
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/
javascript:
javascript:
javascript:
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/contact.htm
amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Exhibit "C"



The energy index increased 5.3 percent for the two months ending in February. The increase was mainly due to higher prices for electricity (17.7 percent). Prices for natural gas
service rose 7.5 percent, while prices for gasoline fell 2.4 percent for the same period.

Energy prices advanced 4.7 percent over the year, largely due to higher prices for electricity (29.8 percent). Prices paid for natural gas service declined 12.9 percent, and prices
for gasoline decreased 2.6 percent during the past year.

All items less food and energy
The index for all items less food and energy advanced 1.3 percent in the latest two-month period. Higher prices for shelter (1.1 percent) were partially offset by lower prices for
used cars and trucks (-3.2 percent), other goods and services (-1.8 percent), and medical care (-0.9 percent).

Over the year, the index for all items less food and energy advanced 2.2 percent. Components contributing to the increase included other goods and services (6.6 percent),
recreation (3.8 percent), and shelter (2.3 percent). Partly offsetting the increases were price decreases in apparel (-3.8 percent) and new and used motor vehicles (-0.7
percent).

Table A. San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, CA, CPI-U 2-month and 12-month percent changes, all items index, not seasonally adjusted

Month

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2-month 12-month 2-month 12-month 2-month 12-month 2-month 12-month 2-month 12-month

February 0.9 2.9 0.5 1.6 1.4 5.2 1.8 5.3 1.5 2.4

April -0.5 1.1 1.7 3.8 1.5 5.0 0.4 4.2

June 0.7 1.6 0.0 3.2 1.7 6.8 0.5 2.9

August 0.0 1.6 0.5 3.7 -0.5 5.7 0.0 3.4

October 0.5 1.1 0.7 3.8 1.0 6.0 0.3 2.8

December 0.4 2.0 0.8 4.2 -0.3 4.9 -0.4 2.6

The April 2024 Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco area is scheduled to be released on May 15, 2024.

Technical Note
The Consumer Price Index (CPI) is a measures of the average change in prices over time in a fixed market basket of goods and services. The Bureau of Labor Statistics
publishes CPIs for two population groups: (1) a CPI for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) which covers approximately 93 percent of the total U.S. population and (2) a CPI for Urban
Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) which covers approximately 29 percent of the total U.S. population. The CPI-U includes, in addition to wage earners and clerical
workers, groups such as professional, managerial, and technical workers, the self-employed, short-term workers, the unemployed, and retirees and others not in the labor force.

The CPI is based on prices of food, clothing, shelter, and fuels, transportation fares, charges for doctors' and dentists' services, drugs, and the other goods and services that
people buy for day-to-day living. Each month, prices are collected in 75 urban areas across the country from about 6,000 housing units and approximately 22,000 retail
establishments—department stores, supermarkets, hospitals, filling stations, and other types of stores and service establishments. All taxes directly associated with the purchase
and use of items are included in the index.

The index measures price changes from a designated reference date; for most of the CPI-U the reference base is 1982-84 equals 100. An increase of 7 percent from the
reference base, for example, is shown as 107.000.  Alternatively, that relationship can also be expressed as the price of a base period market basket of goods and services rising
from $100 to $107. For further details see the CPI home page on the internet at www.bls.gov/cpi and the CPI section of the BLS Handbook of Methods available on the internet
at www.bls.gov/opub/hom/cpi/.

In calculating the index, price changes for the various items in each location are averaged together with weights that represent their importance in the spending of the
appropriate population group. Local data are then combined to obtain a U.S. city average. Because the sample size of a local area is smaller, the local area index is subject to
substantially more sampling and other measurement error than the national index. In addition, local indexes are not adjusted for seasonal influences. As a result, local area
indexes show greater volatility than the national index, although their long-term trends are quite similar. NOTE: Area indexes do not measure differences in the level of
prices between cities; they only measure the average change in prices for each area since the base period.

The San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, CA. metropolitan area covered in this release is comprised of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, San Francisco, San Mateo Counties in the
State of California.

Information in this release will be made available to individuals with sensory impairments upon request. Voice phone: 202-691-5200; Telecommunications Relay Service: 7-1-1.

Table 1. Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): Indexes and percent changes for selected periods

San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, CA (1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted)

Item and Group

Indexes Percent change from-

Historical
data

Dec.
2023

Jan.
2024

Feb.
2024

Feb.
2023

Dec.
2023

Jan.
2024

Expenditure category

All items 339.915 - 345.151 2.4 1.5 -

All items (1967=100) 1,044.992 - 1,061.089 - - -

Food and beverages 363.840 - 369.175 2.6 1.5 -

Footnotes
(1) Indexes on a December 1977=100 base.
(2) This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means estimator.
(3) Indexes on a December 1982=100 base.
(4) Special index based on a substantially smaller sample.
(5) Indexes on a December 1993=100 base.
(6) Indexes on a December 1997=100 base.

- Data not available
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date.

5/6/24, 10:22 AM Consumer Price Index, San Francisco Area — February 2024 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_sanfrancisco.htm 2/4

https://www.bls.gov/cpi
https://www.bls.gov/opub/hom/cpi
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BAA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BAA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true


Item and Group

Indexes Percent change from-

Historical
data

Dec.
2023

Jan.
2024

Feb.
2024

Feb.
2023

Dec.
2023

Jan.
2024

Food 366.135 - 372.025 2.4 1.6 -

Food at home 329.906 333.477 337.705 2.3 2.4 1.3

Cereals and bakery products 339.664 337.277 341.261 3.5 0.5 1.2

Meats, poultry, fish, and eggs 354.307 351.883 352.233 0.3 -0.6 0.1

Dairy and related products 335.272 336.587 332.577 0.3 -0.8 -1.2

Fruits and vegetables 421.261 418.882 436.079 1.0 3.5 4.1

Nonalcoholic beverages and beverage materials(1) 249.052 258.211 261.332 9.1 4.9 1.2

Other food at home 282.604 293.073 295.399 2.2 4.5 0.8

Food away from home 410.907 - 413.574 3.7 0.6 -

Alcoholic beverages 339.751 - 336.159 3.8 -1.1 -

Housing 394.624 - 400.750 2.6 1.6 -

Shelter 438.935 441.530 443.865 2.3 1.1 0.5

Rent of primary residence(2) 503.443 504.311 503.938 2.5 0.1 -0.1

Owners' equiv. rent of residences(2)(3) 473.364 475.434 475.570 2.0 0.5 0.0

Owners' equiv. rent of primary residence(1)(2) 473.364 475.434 475.570 2.0 0.5 0.0

Fuels and utilities 589.028 - 646.485 10.4 9.8 -

Household energy 553.097 635.836 634.527 13.7 14.7 -0.2

Energy services(2) 555.858 640.737 639.406 14.1 15.0 -0.2

Electricity(2) 619.499 728.997 728.997 29.8 17.7 0.0

Utility (piped) gas service(2) 443.636 480.873 476.774 -12.9 7.5 -0.9

Household furnishings and operations 172.870 - 172.101 0.0 -0.4 -

Apparel 111.920 - 112.180 -3.8 0.2 -

Transportation 247.126 - 256.537 3.2 3.8 -

Private transportation 249.414 - 254.169 2.5 1.9 -

New and used motor vehicles(4) 115.797 - 118.298 -0.7 2.2 -

New vehicles(1) 192.742 - 193.419 -1.2 0.4 -

Used cars and trucks(1) 336.141 - 325.453 -1.9 -3.2 -

Motor fuel 340.105 335.924 331.815 -2.6 -2.4 -1.2

Gasoline (all types) 337.774 333.679 329.546 -2.6 -2.4 -1.2

Gasoline, unleaded regular(4) 337.497 333.242 328.983 -2.7 -2.5 -1.3

Gasoline, unleaded midgrade(4)(5) 315.542 312.243 308.411 -2.6 -2.3 -1.2

Gasoline, unleaded premium(4) 321.384 318.020 314.537 -2.0 -2.1 -1.1

Medical care 592.166 - 586.760 - -0.9 -

Recreation(6) 147.155 - 149.805 3.8 1.8 -

Education and communication(6) 160.119 - 161.437 0.6 0.8 -

Tuition, other school fees, and child care(1) 1,945.129 - 1,951.663 - 0.3 -

Other goods and services 629.293 - 617.911 6.6 -1.8 -

Commodity and service group

All items 339.915 - 345.151 2.4 1.5 -

Commodities 231.217 - 231.401 -0.8 0.1 -

Commodities less food & beverages 163.499 - 161.576 -3.2 -1.2 -

Nondurables less food & beverages 215.722 - 213.382 -2.9 -1.1 -

Durables 114.121 - 112.659 -3.5 -1.3 -

Services 431.650 - 441.194 3.9 2.2 -

Special aggregate indexes

All items less medical care 329.449 - 335.127 2.5 1.7 -

Footnotes
(1) Indexes on a December 1977=100 base.
(2) This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means estimator.
(3) Indexes on a December 1982=100 base.
(4) Special index based on a substantially smaller sample.
(5) Indexes on a December 1993=100 base.
(6) Indexes on a December 1997=100 base.

- Data not available
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date.

5/6/24, 10:22 AM Consumer Price Index, San Francisco Area — February 2024 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_sanfrancisco.htm 3/4

https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF111?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF111?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF112?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF112?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEFJ?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEFJ?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF113?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF113?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF114?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF114?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF115?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF115?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEFV?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEFV?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF116?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAF116?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHC?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHC?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHC01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHC01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH2?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH2?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH21?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH21?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHF?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHF?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHF01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHF01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHF02?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEHF02?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH3?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAH3?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAT?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAT?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAT1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAT1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETA?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETA01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETA01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETA02?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETA02?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETB?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETB?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETB01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSETB01?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSS47014?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSS47014?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSS47015?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSS47015?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSS47016?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSS47016?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAM?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAM?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAR?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAR?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAE?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAE?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEEB?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSEEB?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAG?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAG?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAC?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAC?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSACL11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSACL11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSANL11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSANL11?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAD?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAD?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAS?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAS?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0L5?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0L5?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true


Item and Group

Indexes Percent change from-

Historical
data

Dec.
2023

Jan.
2024

Feb.
2024

Feb.
2023

Dec.
2023

Jan.
2024

All items less shelter 301.270 - 306.843 2.4 1.8 -

Commodities less food 171.059 - 169.056 -2.9 -1.2 -

Nondurables 291.148 - 292.666 0.4 0.5 -

Nondurables less food 225.330 - 222.891 -2.3 -1.1 -

Services less rent of shelter(3) 447.129 - 464.780 6.6 3.9 -

Services less medical care services 420.467 - 430.366 4.1 2.4 -

Energy 427.354 453.130 449.829 4.7 5.3 -0.7

All items less energy 339.937 - 344.555 2.3 1.4 -

All items less food and energy 336.781 - 341.209 2.2 1.3 -

Footnotes
(1) Indexes on a December 1977=100 base.
(2) This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means estimator.
(3) Indexes on a December 1982=100 base.
(4) Special index based on a substantially smaller sample.
(5) Indexes on a December 1993=100 base.
(6) Indexes on a December 1997=100 base.

- Data not available
NOTE: Index applies to a month as a whole, not to any specific date.

 

Last Modified Date: Tuesday, March 12, 2024

U.S. BUREAU OF LABOR STATISTICS Western Information Office  Attn: EA & I, 90 Seventh Street  Suite 14-100  San Francisco, CA 94103-6715

Telephone:1-415-625-2270 www.bls.gov/regions/west  Contact Western Region

5/6/24, 10:22 AM Consumer Price Index, San Francisco Area — February 2024 : Western Information Office : U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_sanfrancisco.htm 4/4

https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0L2?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0L2?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSACL1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSACL1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAN?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSAN?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSANL1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSANL1?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSASL2RS?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSASL2RS?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSASL5?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSASL5?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0E?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0E?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0LE?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0LE?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0L1E?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUURS49BSA0L1E?amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true
tel:14156252270
tel:14156252270
tel:14156252270
tel:14156252270
tel:14156252270
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/home.htm
https://data.bls.gov/forms/ro9.htm?/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_sanfrancisco.htm


STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 RESOLUTION 2024-002 
 
A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS WITHIN 
THE STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT SPECIAL BENEFIT 

ASSESSMENT RATE FOR FY 2024-2025 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District has by previous resolutions or 
other proceedings declared its intent to annually levy assessments for the purpose of fire 
protection under the provisions of the State of California Government Code section 50078 et seq.; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the annual assessments against the real property are not levied with regard to 
property values but rather based upon the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit 
conferred by the services that are immediately available to each property owner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District has previously adopted the 
assessment methodology for the purpose of fire protection set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto, including 
authorization to annually increase the assessment by the greater of 3% in conformity with 
Government Code section 50078.6; article XIII D, section 4 of the California Constitution; and 
Government Code section 53753. Levies henceforth will be solely by way of the methodology as 
described in the Engineer’s Report Fire Suppression Assessment Stanislaus Consolidated Fire 
Protection District (“Engineer’s Report”) which defines the assessment approved by the voters on 
December 9, 2004 and is incorporated herein by this reference; and 
 
WHEREAS, such CPI increases included in the assessment methodology does not constitute an 
increase to the assessment within the meaning of Government Code section 53753.5(a); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 50078.16 the District may provide for the 
collection of the assessment in the same manner, and subject to the same penalties as other fees, 
charges, and assessments fixed and collected by the county through the annual property tax rolls; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District has 
previously approved and adopted a Fire Assessment Limited Income Rate Reduction (“Lifeline”) 
Program with respect to the imposition of the assessment as provided herein “Exhibit B”. The 
Lifeline Program is funded with unrestricted revenue sources of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire 
Protection District’s general fund. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
does hereby resolve as follows: 
 
Section 1: The foregoing recitals are true and correct findings of the Board of Directors and are 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2: The Board of Directors orders the levy and collection of such assessments within the 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District for the 2024-2025 fiscal year in the amounts set 



forth in Exhibit “A” hereto, and that a certified copy of this resolution and attached documentation 
(Exhibit “A”) shall be delivered to the Auditor-Controller of the County of Stanislaus for placement 
of such charges on the 2024/2025 County Tax Roll. 
 
Section 3: The previously adopted Fire Assessment Limited Income Rate Reduction (Lifeline) 
Program and Income Guidelines (Exhibit “D”) shall be applicable, where appropriated, to the levy 
of the assessment as provided herein. 
 
Section 4. If any provision of this Resolution is found to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, that invalidity will not affect the remaining provisions of this 
Resolution, which can be implemented without the invalid provisions, and to this end, the 
provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Stanislaus 
Consolidated Fire Protection District at a regular meeting held this 16th day of May, 2024. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Greg Bernardi, Board President 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                        
Amanda McCormick, Clerk of the Board 
 



 

 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Stanislaus 
Consolidated Fire Protection District Board of Directors by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   Directors:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
Dated: May 16, 2024      
ATTEST: The foregoing is certified to be a correct copy of the original on file in this office  
 which has not been revoked and is now in full force and effect. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                                                                                                                 
Amanda McCormick, Clerk of the Board   Frank Splendorio, District Counsel 



STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-003 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE STANISLAUS 
CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT OF STANISLAUS COUNTY 

UPDATING THE LIST OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES TO SIGN WARRANTS 
DRAWN ON THE DITRICT’S FUNDS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller’s office requires a list of signatures authorized to sign 
warrants drawn on the District’s funds approved by resolution, and whereas due to a change of 
personnel on the Board and Staff, a new list of authorized signatures has been prepared, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors adopts the attached list of signatures authorized to 
sign warrants drawn on the District’s funds. 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the District Board by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
Dated: May 16, 2024     _______________________________  
       Greg Bernardi, Board President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
The foregoing is certified to be a correct copy of the 
original on file in this office which has not been revoked 
and is now in full force and effect. 

 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                    
Amanda McCormick, Clerk of the Board  Frank Splendorio, District Counsel 
 
 
 

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 12.B





  
 

     Item 12.C 
 

STAFF REPORT  
 
TO:   President Bernardi and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Deputy Chief Clint Bray 
 
SUBJECT: Station 22 Exterior Painting Bids 
 
DATE: May 16, 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review, discuss, and award bid for the exterior painting of Station 22. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At the October 11th, 2023 Capital Improvements Committee meeting, it was decided that the District 
would pursue facility improvements and long term repairs. Currently, the District addresses issues as 
they arise with hopes of encountering any major and unexpected repairs. 
 
The committee decided to pursue the three following projects as a priority: 

 Exterior painting of Station 22 
 Exterior painting of Station 23 
 Remodel of both bathrooms at Station 26 

 
The District opened all three projects to bid on April 23rd, 2024. Contractors turned all sealed bids in 
before the deadline of May 10th, 2024. Sealed bids were opened by District staff and reviewed. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
As decided at the October 11th, 2023 Capital Improvements meeting, funding for these projects will 
come from the Capital Expenditures account. The Capital Expenditures account currently has a 
balance of $870,113.54.  
 
RECOMENDATION: 
 
District staff recommends the Board award the Station 22 exterior painting project to the lowest 
bidder, Lancaster Painting, with a total bid amount of $16,500.00.  
 

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us  

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 12.C



1 

 

 
 

Project and Bid Description  
 
     Fire Station 22  

Exterior paint 
 

     
 

Prepared by: 
Scott Burke, Battalion Chief 

April 11, 2024 
 

1



2 

Contents 

Introduction...................................................................................................................... 3 

Requirements. ................................................................................................................. 3 

Scope of Work ................................................................................................................. 3 

Summary of Requirements. .......................................................................................... 4 

Onsite Visit. ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Bid Instructions. .............................................................................................................. 5 

Evaluation Process. ....................................................................................................... 5 

Questions. ........................................................................................................................ 5 

Timeframe. ...................................................................................................................... 5 

Public Records. ................................................................................................................ 5 

Disclaimer ........................................................................................................................ 6 

Form Agreement. ............................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 

-Form Public Project Agreement attached



3 

Introduction 

The Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (District) seeks bids from qualified 
contractors to paint the exterior of fire station 22, 4845 Yosemite Blvd. Modesto CA 95357. 
The Board requests bids from individuals and companies whose combination of experience 
and expertise will provide timely, cost-effective and quality professional service to the district. 

Requirements 

• The successful bidder shall provide proof of insurance as required in the district’s 
form Public Project Agreement attached to this document. 

• As a “Public Works” project and pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the 
general prevailing wage rates for Stanislaus County shall apply to this contract, as 
determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations 

• The successful bidder shall be required to execute the district’s form Public Project 
Agreement 

Scope of Work 
 

The district seeks a contractor to paint the entirety of fire station 22 including the following. 
Power wash  
Stucco Patch  
Spot prime stucco using seal krete 
Prepare and Spot prime fascia using a multi-purpose spot prime 
Spray and back roll the exterior of fire station 22 stucco (2 coats) Sherwin Williams 7036 
Accessible Beige 
Paint fascia, carport, and man doors / frames (2 coats) Sherwin Williams 7048 Urban 
Bronze 
Paint bollards.  
Paint front roll up doors Pierce Red #90 (automotive color). 
 
 

 

Description of work: 

Utilizing industry standard techniques, prepare surfaces and paint the exterior of fire station 

22. A two-story fire station operated by the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire District.



4 

Summary of Requirements 
The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment necessary to 
complete the scope of work. 
All products used by the Contractor shall comply with all laws, codes and industry 
standards for the products' intended uses and shall be used in accordance with 
manufacturer recommendations. 
The Contractor will be responsible for the protection of all items and surfaces not 
scheduled to be worked on, and these areas must be kept clean throughout the project. 
These areas include, but are not limited to, windows, walkways, doors, benches, vehicles 
and plant and tree material. The Contractor shall be responsible for repairing, at the 
Contractor’s expense, any damage that results from the work. 

All work performed, methods and equipment used shall be in conformance with the 
Prevailing State and Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act. Costs from delays and 
losses due to operations not in conformance with these acts, specifications, or stoppages 
by OSHA inspectors or the designated representative because of non-conformance shall 
be solely borne by the Contractor. 

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the protection and safety of the public and 
use appropriate means to ensure that the district’s employees and the public are safe 
during the project. 

The Contractor shall fully guarantee all work, materials and parts furnished and installed 
for one full year after completion. Defects shall be replaced or repaired at the Contractor’s 
expense. 

The fire station is open 24/7 and all work is to be performed in a way that emergency 
vehicle movement is not disturbed and impact to business traffic is minimized. Close 
coordination with the district’s project lead will be required to plan for alternative 
apparatus placement and/or traffic flow during the work to be performed. The Contractor 
shall be responsible for site clean-up daily after work has been performed and upon the 
completion of the project. Removal of all debris associated with the project at the site 
shall be in accordance with any local, state and federal regulations. All clean up 
performed shall ensure the property is presentable and fully clean before the work is 
completed. All ladders and stacked tools and equipment stored properly each evening in 
an acceptable safe location determined by the on-duty Battalion Chief.



5 

Onsite Visit 
An onsite visit is scheduled for April 29, 2024 @ 1000 hrs. Please RSVP with BC Scott 
Burke at sburke@scfpd.us to attend.  

Bid Instructions 

Interested individuals or firms must submit bids to Stanislaus Consolidated Fire District 
Attn: Deputy Chief Clint Bray. To be considered responsive, bids shall contain the 
following information:  Company Information 

o Company Legal Name 

o License 

o Address 

o Phone 

o Email 

• Description of experience with similar work, including recent jobs completed • 

Lump sum, not-to-exceed bid price to complete all required work 
• Proposed project schedule (including start date and days to complete work) • 

Proof of required insurance (see attached Public Project Agreement) 
 

Evaluation Process 
District staff shall determine the lowest responsive bid from a responsible, qualified bidder (to 
be determined based on work experience). District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to 
reject any or all bids, to re-bid, or to waive inconsequential defects in bidding not involving 
time, price or quality of the work. Owner may reject any and all Bids and waive any minor 
irregularities in the bids. Final approval of any selected firm is subject to award by the District's 
Board of Directors, which may choose not to award for any reason. 

 
Questions 

Questions regarding this RFP shall be submitted in writing by e-mail to Stanislaus Fire 

Protection District: Deputy Chief Clint Bray: cbray@scfpd.us. Verbal questions will NOT be 

accepted. Answers to questions shall be provided in writing after the onsite visit and shall be 

provided to all prospective bidders attending the onsite visit. 

 
Timeframe 

The timeframe for this bid process is as follows: 
   
  Tuesday, April 23rd – Notice inviting bids sent out by District.  
  Monday, April 29th- Site visit  

Friday May 3rd   – Last date to submit questions to District.  
Friday May 10th – Last date to submit a bid/bid opening (5:00 PM) 
Thursday May 16th – Bid evaluation results provided by District for Award of Contract 

 
 
 



6 

Public Records 

All information included in this document and the bids submitted to the district is subject to 

disclosure per the California Public Records Act. 

 
Disclaimer 

THIS IS A REQUEST FOR BIDS ONLY. It is intended to identify potential independent 
contractors. The information provided in this document is subject to change and is not binding 
on the district. The district has not made a commitment to procure any of the items discussed 
or to award a contract at the conclusion of the bid process. All costs of preparing and 
submitting a bid shall be borne by the bidder and shall not be reimbursed. All bids and 
supporting information submitted become District property and will not be returned.  

 

The contract to be awarded shall be in the form of the Public Project Agreement attached on 
the following pages. The provisions of this document will be incorporated in the awarded 
contract. By submitting a bid, the bidder agrees that upon award it will execute the Public 
Project Agreement when provided by the district and to be bound by its provisions. A bidder 
who takes exception to any provision of the attached form Public Project Agreement must 
indicate in the bid the provisions to which they object and reasons for the objection. No 
alterations to the form Public Project Agreement shall be made prior to execution of the 
Agreement by the successful bidder, unless it is in response to an objection raised in the bid.



7 

PUBLIC PROJECT AGREEMENT 
FOR 

Paint Project 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, FIRE STATION 22 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into as of the  day of  , 2024 
by and between the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District hereinafter called 
"DISTRICT" and  hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR". 

 
RECITALS 

 
This Agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 

 
A. That DISTRICT desires to engage CONTRACTOR to perform work on a public works 

project. 
 

B. That CONTRACTOR is qualified to provide such services to the DISTRICT and. 
 

C. That the DISTRICT has elected to engage the services of CONTRACTOR upon the 
terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth. 

 
1. Services. The services to be performed by CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement shall include those services set forth in Exhibit A, which is, by 
this reference, incorporated herein and made a part hereof as though it were 
fully set forth herein. 

 
Performance of the work specified in said Exhibit A is hereby made an 
obligation of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, subject to any changes 
that may be made subsequently hereto upon the mutual written agreement 
of the said parties. 

 
Where in conflict, the terms of this Agreement supersede and prevail over 
any terms set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
2.  Term; Termination. 

(a) The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date 
hereinabove written and shall expire upon completion of performance of 
services hereunder by CONTRACTOR. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) above, either party may terminate 
this Agreement without cause by giving written notice not less than ten 
(10) days prior to the effective date of termination, which date shall be 
included in said notice. In the event of such termination, DISTRICT shall 
compensate CONTRACTOR for services rendered, and reimburse 
CONTRACTOR for costs and expenses incurred, to the date of termination, 
calculated in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 3. In ascertaining 
the services rendered to the date of termination, consideration shall be 
given both to completed work and work in process of completion. Nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed a limitation upon the right of DISTRICT 
to terminate this Agreement for cause, or otherwise



8 

to exercise such rights or pursue such remedies as may accrue to 
DISTRICT hereunder. 

 
3. Compensation; Expenses; Payment. DISTRICT shall compensate 

CONTRACTOR for all services performed by CONTRACTOR hereunder in 
an amount based upon CONTRACTOR’s hourly rates during the time of the 
performance of said services. A copy of CONTRACTOR’s hourly rates for 
which services hereunder shall be performed are set forth in 
CONTRACTOR’s fee schedule marked Exhibit “B” hereof, attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the combined total of compensation and 
reimbursement of costs payable hereunder shall not exceed the sum 
 ($ ) unless the performance 
of services and/or reimbursement of costs and expenses more than said 
amounts have been approved in advance of performing such services or 
incurring such costs by amendment to this Agreement. 

 
Compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses hereunder shall 
be payable upon monthly billing therefore by CONTRACTOR to DISTRICT, 
which billing shall include an itemized statement, briefly describing by task 
and labor category or cost/expense items billed. 

 
4. Additional Services. In the event DISTRICT desires the performance of 

additional services not otherwise included within the services described in 
Exhibit A, such services shall be authorized by amendment in advance of 
the performance. Such amendment to this Agreement shall include a 
description of the services to be performed thereunder, the maximum 
compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses payable therefor, 
the time of performance thereof, and such other matters as the parties deem 
appropriate for the accomplishment of such services. Except to the extent 
modified by written amendment, all other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be deemed incorporated in each such amendment. 

 
5. Records. CONTRACTOR shall keep and maintain accurate records of all time 

expended and costs and expenses incurred relating to services to be 
performed by CONTRACTOR hereunder. Said records shall be available to 
DISTRICT for review and copying during regular business hours at 
CONTRACTOR’s place of business or as otherwise agreed upon by the 
parties. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other papers, or 
copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and delivery to 
DISTRICT, become the property of DISTRICT. 

 
6. Authorization. This Agreement becomes effective when endorsed by both 

parties in the space provided below. 
 

7. Reliance on Professional Skill of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR represents 
that it has the necessary professional skills to perform the



9 

services required and the DISTRICT shall rely on the skills of the 
CONTRACTOR to do and perform the work. In performing services 
hereunder CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the standards generally 
prevailing for the performance of services like those to be performed by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder. 

 
8. Documents. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other papers, or 

copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and delivery to 
DISTRICT, become the property of DISTRICT. 

 
9. Relationship of Parties. It is understood that the relationship of CONTRACTOR 

to the DISTRICT is that of an independent contractor and all persons 
working for or under the direction of CONTRACTOR are its agents or 
employees and not agents or employees of the DISTRICT. 

 
10. Schedule. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the schedule set forth in Exhibit A; 

provided, that DISTRICT shall grant reasonable extensions of time for the 
performance of such services occasioned by governmental reviews of 
CONTRACTOR’s work product or other unavoidable delays; provided, 
further, that such unavoidable delay shall not include strikes, lockouts, work 
stoppages, or other labor disturbances conducted by, or on behalf of, 
CONTRACTOR’s officers or employees. 

 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges the importance to DISTRICT of DISTRICT’s 
Project schedule and agrees to put forth its best professional efforts to 
perform its services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with that 
schedule. 

 
11. Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR hereby 

agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless DISTRICT, its boards, 
commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and against any and all 
claims, suits, actions liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, 
without limitation, costs and fees of litigation) of every nature, kind or 
description, which may be brought against, or suffered or sustained by, 
DISTRICT, its boards, commissions, officers, employees or agents caused 
by, or alleged to have been caused by, the negligence, intentional tortuous 
act or omission, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors or agents in the performance of any services or 
work pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The duty of CONTRACTOR to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth 
herein, shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the 
California Civil Code; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall 
be construed to require CONTRACTOR to indemnify DISTRICT, its boards, 
commissions, officers, employees and agents against any responsibility or 
liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code.



10 

CONTRACTOR’s responsibility for such defense and indemnity obligations 
shall survive the termination or completion of this Agreement for the full 
period of time allowed by law. 

 
The defense and indemnification obligations of this agreement are 
undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the 
insurance obligations contained within this Agreement. 

 
12. Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall acquire and maintain Workers’ 

Compensation, employer’s liability, commercial general liability, and owned 
and non-owned and hired automobile liability insurance coverage relating to 
CONTRACTOR’s services to be performed hereunder covering DISTRICT’s 
risks in form subject to the approval of the DISTRICT Attorney and/or 
DISTRICT’s Risk Manager. The minimum amounts of coverage 
corresponding to the aforesaid categories of insurance per insurable event, 
shall be as follows: 

 
Insurance Category Minimum Limits 

Workers’ Compensation statutory minimum 

Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease 
 

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage. 

Automobile Liability $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage (coverage 

required to the extent applicable to 
CONTRACTOR’s vehicle usage in 

performing services hereunder) 
 

It shall be a requirement under this Agreement that any available insurance 
proceeds broader than or in excess of the specified minimum insurance 
coverage requirements and/or limits shall be available to the DISTRICT as 
an Additional Insured. Furthermore, the requirements for coverage and limits 
shall be the greater of either (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified 
in this Agreement or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of 
coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the named 
Insured. 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to include with all subcontractors in their 
subcontracts the same requirements and provisions of this agreement 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements to the extent they apply 
to the scope of the subcontractor’s work. Subcontractors hired by 
CONTRACTOR shall agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and DISTRICT 
in the same manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR is bound to 
DISTRICT under this Agreement and its accompanying



11 

documents. Subcontractors shall further agree to include these same 
provisions with any sub-subcontractors. A copy of the indemnity and 
insurance provisions of this Agreement will be furnished to the Subcontractor 
upon request. CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to provide a 
valid certificate of insurance and the required endorsements included in the 
subcontract agreement and will provide proof of compliance to the 
DISTRICT prior to commencement of any work by the subcontractor. 

 
Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall, on 
the Insurance Coverage form provided in Exhibit C or similar, furnish 
DISTRICT with certificates and copies of information or declaration pages 
of the insurance required hereunder and, with respect to evidence of 
commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance coverage, 
original endorsements: 

 
(a) Precluding cancellation or reduction in per occurrence limits before 

the expiration of thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment) after 
DISTRICT shall have received written notification of cancellation in 
coverage or reduction in per occurrence limits by first class mail; 

 
(b) Providing that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except 
with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability (cross liability 
endorsement); 

 
(c) Naming the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, its 

officers, boards, commissions, employees, and agents, as 
additional insureds; and 

 
(d) Providing that CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance with respect to Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection 
District, its officers, boards, commissions, employees, and agents, 
and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by DISTRICT for 
itself, its Council, officers, boards, commissions, employees, or 
agents shall be in excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and not 
contributory with it. CONTRACTOR and its insurer may not seek 
contribution from DISTRICT’s insurance or self-insurance. 

 
The limits of insurance required in this agreement may be satisfied by a 
combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or 
excess insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that 
such coverage shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis for 
the benefit of DISTRICT, to the extent required by this Agreement, before 
the DISTRICT’s insurance or self-insurance may be called upon to protect 
DISTRICT as a named Insured. 

 
All self-insured retentions (SIR) must be disclosed to DISTRICT for approval 
and shall not reduce the limits of liability coverage. Policies containing and 
SIR provision shall provide or be endorsed to provide that



12 

the SIR may be satisfied by either the named CONTRACTOR/Named 
Insured or DISTRICT. 

 
DISTRICT reserves the right to obtain a fully certified copy of any insurance 
policy and endorsements. Failure to exercise this right shall not constitute a 
waiver of right to exercise later. 

 
Any and all Subcontractors shall agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and 
DISTRICT in the same manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR 
is bound to DISTRICT under this Agreement. Subcontractors shall further 
agree to include the same requirements and provisions of this Agreement, 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements, in any agreement with 
sub-subcontractors to the extent that they apply to the scope of the sub-
subcontractor’s work. A copy of the indemnity and insurance provisions of 
this Agreement shall be furnished to any subcontractor upon request. 

 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain insurance as required by this Agreement to 
the fullest amount allowed by law and shall maintain insurance for a 
minimum of five (5) years following completion of this project or service. In 
the event CONTRACTOR fails to obtain or maintain completed operations 
coverage as required by this Agreement, the DISTRICT at its sole discretion 
may purchase the coverage required and the cost will be paid by 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
13. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. CONTRACTOR certifies that he is aware of 

the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or 
to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, 
and CONTRACTOR certifies that he will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work of this agreement. 

 
14. PREVAILING WAGES. The services to be performed include public works 

within the meaning of Labor Code Sections 1720 through 1861, and 
CONTRACTOR must comply with state laws pertaining to prevailing wage 
and labor requirements, as more fully described in Exhibit E attached hereto 
and incorporated in this Agreement by reference. 

15. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, 
sex or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed, and the employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, advancement, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
CONTRACTOR shall at all times be in compliance with the requirements of 
the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336) which



13 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities. The 
CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the 
DISTRICT setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

 
16. Notice. All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to the DISTRICT 

and CONTRACTOR in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 

 
DISTRICT: Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

3324 Topeka St. 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

Attention: Deputy Chief Clint Bray 
 

CONTRACTOR:   
(Fill in CONTRACTOR Name, Address, Phone 

Number, and Project Manager 
for 

CONTRACTOR) 
 

17. Non-Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in part. 
 

18. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written 
agreement signed by both parties. 

 
19. Validity. The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement 

shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 
 

20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California and any suit or action initiated by either party shall be brought in 
the County of San Mateo, California. In the event of litigation between the 
parties hereto to enforce any provision of the Agreement, the unsuccessful 
party will pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses of litigation of the 
successful party. 

 
21. Mediation. Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, the parties shall 

meet in mediation and attempt to reach a resolution with the assistance of a 
mutually acceptable mediator. Neither party shall be permitted to file legal 
action without first meeting in mediation and making a good faith attempt to 
reach a mediated resolution. The costs of the mediator, if any, shall be paid 
equally by the parties. If a mediated settlement is reached neither party shall 
be deemed the prevailing party for purposes of the settlement and each 
party shall bear its own legal costs. 

 
22. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR may serve other clients, but none who 

conduct business would place CONTRACTOR in a "conflict of interest" as 
that term is defined in State law.



14 

23. Payment Bond. Pursuant to Civil Code section 9550, if the not-to-exceed 
compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR under Section 3, above, is in 
excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000), CONTRACTOR shall 
submit a payment bond acceptable to DISTRICT prior to the 
commencement of work. 

 
24. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits A, B C, D, E, and F, 

comprises the entire Agreement. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
on the date first above written by their respective officers duly authorized in that behalf. 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

Dated:  Clint Bray, Deputy Chief 

 
 

Dated:   Greg Bernardi, Board President 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Dated:  

 

 

Frank Splendorio, District Legal Counsel 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR

Dated:  

 

Type Name & Title of CONTRACTOR 
Authorized to Sign



15 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK AND SCHEDULE 
FOR 

Paint Project 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District Station 22 

 
Scope of Work 
The district is seeking a professional firm (Contractor) to complete exterior paint of fire 
station 22, 4845 Yosemite Blvd. Modesto CA. 95357 

 
Contractor will be performing the following: 

Complete preparation and repaint of two-story fire station. 

Description of work: 

 
The district seeks a contractor to paint the entirety of fire station 22 including the following; 
Power wash  
Stucco Patch  
Spot prime stucco using seal krete 
Prepare and Spot prime fascia using a multi-purpose spot prime 
Spray and back roll the exterior of fire station 22 stucco (2 coats) Sherwin Williams 7036 Accessible Beige 
Paint fascia, carport, and man doors / frames (2 coats) Sherwin Williams 7048 Urban Bronze 
Paint bollards.  
Paint front roll up doors Pierce Red #90 (automotive color). 
 
 
 
 
Utilizing industry standard techniques, prepare surfaces and paint the exterior of fire station 22. A two-story 
fire station operated by the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 

CONTRACTOR’S FEE SCHEDULE



17 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 

INSURANCE FORMS 
 

CONTRACTOR shall provide, in addition to the Certificates of Insurance, original 
Endorsement affecting the coverages specified in Section 12 - INSURANCE of the 
Agreement on the attached form. No substitute form will be accepted. 

 
ATTACHED 

 
1. Insurance Coverage Form



18 

EXHIBIT D 
This INSURANCE COVERAGE FORM modifies or documents insurance provided under the following: 

 
Named Insured: Effective Work Date(s): 

 
Description of Work/Locations/Vehicles: 
ADDITIONAL INSURED: Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (DISTRICT) 

3324 Topeka St. Riverbank, CA 95367 
Attention:   

Contract Administrator 

Endorsement and Certificates of Insurance Required 
The Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers  
are included as insureds with regard to damages and defense of claims arising from: (Check  
all that apply) 

Insurer Policy 
No. 

General Liability: (a) activities performed by or on behalf of the Named 
Insured, (b) products and completed operations of the Named Insured, (c) 
premises owned, leased occupied or used by the Named Insured, and/or 
(d) permits issued for operations performed by the Named Insured. {Note: 
MEETS OR EXCEEDS ISO Form # CG 20 10 11 85} 

  

Auto Liability: the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or 
unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Named 
Insured, regardless of whether liability is attributable to the Named Insured 
or a combination of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured, its 
elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. 

  

Other: 
  

Certificates of Insurance Required (no endorsement needed) (Check all that 
apply) 

Insurer Policy 
No. 

Workers Compensation: work performed by employees of the Named 
Insured while those employees are engaged in work under the simultaneous 
directions and control of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured. 

  

Professional Liability: 
  

 

 
PRIMARY/NON-CONTRIBUTORY: This insurance is primary and is not additional to or contributing with any other insurance carried by or 
for the benefit of Additional Insureds. 

 
SEVERABILITY OF INTEREST: The insurance afforded by this policy applies separately to each insured who is seeking coverage or 
against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limit of liability. 

 
PROVISIONS REGARDING THE INSURED'S DUTIES AFTER ACCIDENT OR LOSS: Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of 
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

 
CANCELLATION NOTICE. The insurance afforded by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits 
except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice (ten (10) days if canceled due to non-payment) by regular mail return receipt requested has 
been given to the Additional Insured. Such notice shall be addressed as shown above. 

 
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: The insurer(s) named above agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the DISTRICT, its elected or 
appointed officers, officials, agents, volunteers and employees for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from work performed 
by the Named Insured for the DISTRICT. 

Nothing herein contained shall vary, alter or extend any provision or condition of the Policy other than as above 
stated. SIGNATURE OF INSURER OR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE INSURER 

I,  (print/type name), warrant that I have authority to bind the 
above-named insurance company and by my signature hereon do so bind this company.



19 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (original signature required) 

ORGANIZATION: TITLE: 

ADDRESS: 
 

TELEPHONE: ( ) DATE ISSUED:



20 

EXHIBIT E 

 
LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS 

 

1. Public Works Project/ Prevailing Wage. The work to be performed under this Agreement is for 
“Public Works” within the meaning of Labor Code Sections 1720 to 1861. CONTRACTOR must 
therefore comply with state prevailing wage and labor law (California Labor Code Sections 1720 to 
1780, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, commencing with Section 16000) 
for work performed under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR’s obligations under prevailing wage and 
labor compliance laws include, among other things, to: pay at least the applicable prevailing wage 
and travel and subsistence payments for public works activities performed under this Agreement; 
comply with overtime and working hour requirements; comply with apprenticeship obligations; 
comply with payroll recordkeeping requirements; and comply with other obligations as required by 
law. Copies of the applicable prevailing wage rates are on file with the DISTRICT’s Project Manager, 
and shall be made available to any interested party upon request. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 
the above requirements are included in all its contracts and any lower tier subcontracts for activities 
for the Project. 

2. Registration with Department of Industrial Relations. This project is subject to compliance 
monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. CONTRACTOR must be 
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations under Labor Code section 1725.5 when 
bidding and throughout performance of this agreement. 

3. Wage Rates. 

3(A).  It shall be mandatory upon CONTRACTOR and upon any subcontractor to pay not less than 
the specified rates to all laborers, workers, and mechanics employed in the execution of the 
Contract. It is further expressly stipulated that CONTRACTOR shall, as a penalty to 
DISTRICT, forfeit two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each laborer, worker, or mechanic paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for any work 
done under this Agreement by CONTRACTOR or by any subcontractor; and CONTRACTOR 
agrees to comply with all provisions of Section 1775 of the Labor Code. 

3(B).  The DISTRICT will not recognize any claim for additional compensation because of the 
payment by the CONTRACTOR of any wage rate in excess of the prevailing wage rate set 
forth in the Agreement. The possibility of wage increases is one of the elements to be 
considered by the CONTRACTOR in determining its bid, and will not under any circumstances 
be considered as the basis of a claim against the DISTRICT on the Agreement. 

4. Payroll Records. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor must comply with Labor Code 
Section 1776 and all requirements of contractors stated therein for the maintenance, inspection and 
certification of payroll records. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor who fails to timely 
furnish payroll records or make the records available for inspection will forfeit to the DISTRICT the 
penalty for non-compliance set forth in Labor Code Section 1776 for their respective failure. 

5. Discrimination. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor must comply with the anti 
discrimination requirements of Labor Code Section 1777.6.



21 

EXHIBIT F 

 
A. Required Provisions On Contract Claim Resolution 

Any claim arising under this contract which the CONTRACTOR wishes to assert against the DISTRICT (“public 
entity”) shall be governed by California Public Contract Code Section 9204. Claims which do not exceed three 
hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) are also subject to the provisions of Article 
1.5 of the California Public Contract Code (commencing with Section 20104). Pursuant to California Public 
Contracts Code Section 9204, claims shall be resolved as follows: 

 
1. (a) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim applies shall conduct a 

reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a 
written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon 
receipt of a claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period 
provided in this subdivision. 

 
(b) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim, pursuant to Document 00 7200 
(General Conditions), Article 12. 

 
(c) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant a written statement 
identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet 
within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by 
registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following 
the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to 
provide the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 

 
(d) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after 
the public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph 
(3) shall apply. 

 
2. (a) If the claimant disputes the public entity’s written response, or if the public entity fails to respond to a claim 

issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing 
sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet 
and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 

 
(b) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any 
portion of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying 
the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an 
undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its 
written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted 
to nonbinding mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs equally. The public 
entity and claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the 
claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a 
mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed 
portion of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection 
with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in 
dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section. 

 
(c) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, 
neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in 
dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to 
the timeframes in this section. 

 
(d) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the mediation conducted 
pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has 
been commenced.



22 

(e) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes under private arbitration 
or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ 
dispute. 

 
3. Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods described in 
this subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall result in the claim being 
deemed 

rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the public entity’s failure to have responded to a claim, or 
its failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard 

to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant. 
 

4. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 percent per annum. 
 

5. If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a public entity because 
privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public entity a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf 
or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by 
the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting 
that the claim be presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. 
Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to 
whether the contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did not present the 
claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so. 

 
A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, however, that (1) 
upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to 
the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe 
reasonable change order, claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the 
provisions of this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the 
timeframes and procedures set forth in this section. 

 
Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants available through 
a competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its contractual obligations. 

B. Compliance With Americans With Disabilities Act 

1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), programs, services and 
other activities provided by a public entity to the public, whether directly or through a Contractor, must be 
accessible to the disabled public. CONTRACTOR shall provide the services specified in the Contract Documents 
in a manner that complies with the ADA and any and all other applicable federal, state and local disability rights 
legislation. CONTRACTOR agrees not to discriminate against disabled persons in the provision of services, 
benefits or activities provided under the Contract Documents and further agrees that any violation of this 
prohibition on the part of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents or assigns shall constitute a material breach of 
the Contract Documents. 

C. Compliance With IRCA 

1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that CONTRACTOR, and all subcontractors hired by CONTRACTOR to perform 
services under this Agreement, are aware of and understand the Immigration Reform and Control Act (IRCA). 
CONTRACTOR is and shall remain in compliance with the IRCA and shall ensure that any subcontractors hired 
by CONTRACTOR to perform services under this Agreement are in compliance with the IRCA. In addition, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Owner, its agents, officers and employees, from 
any liability, damages or causes of action arising out of or relating to any claims that CONTRACTOR’s 
employees, or employees of any subcontractor hired by CONTRACTOR, are not authorized to work in the United 
States for CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor and/or any other claims based upon alleged IRCA violations 
committed by CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’s subcontractors. 15 









































  
 

     Item 12.D 
 

STAFF REPORT  
 
TO:   President Bernardi and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Deputy Chief Clint Bray 
 
SUBJECT: Station 23 Exterior Painting Bids 
 
DATE: May 16, 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open sealed bids, review, discuss, and award bid for the exterior painting of Station 23. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At the October 11th, 2023 Capital Improvements Committee meeting, it was decided that the District 
would pursue facility improvements and long term repairs. Currently, the District addresses issues as 
they arise with hopes of encountering any major and unexpected repairs. 
 
The committee decided to pursue the three following projects as a priority: 

 Exterior painting of Station 22 
 Exterior painting of Station 23 
 Remodel of both bathrooms at Station 26 

 
The District opened all three projects to bid on April 23rd, 2024. Contractors turned all sealed bids in 
before the deadline of May 10th, 2024. Sealed bids were opened by District staff and reviewed. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
As decided at the October 11th, 2023 Capital Improvements meeting, funding for these projects will 
come from the Capital Expenditures account. The Capital Expenditures account currently has a 
balance of $870,113.54.  
 
RECOMENDATION: 
 
District staff recommends the Board award the Station 23 exterior painting project to the lowest 
bidder, Lancaster Painting, with a total bid amount of $14,488.00.  
 

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us  

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 12.D



1 

 

 
 

Project and Bid Description  
 
     Fire Station 23  

Exterior paint 
 

          
 

Prepared by: 
Scott Burke, Battalion Chief 

April 10, 2024 
 

1



2 

Contents 

Introduction...................................................................................................................... 3 

Requirements. ................................................................................................................. 3 

Scope of Work ................................................................................................................. 3 

Summary of Requirements. .......................................................................................... 4 

Onsite Visit. ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Bid Instructions. .............................................................................................................. 5 

Evaluation Process. ....................................................................................................... 6 

Questions. ........................................................................................................................ 6 

Timeframe. ...................................................................................................................... 6 

Public Records. ................................................................................................................ 6 

Disclaimer ........................................................................................................................ 6 

Form Agreement. ............................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 

-Form Public Project Agreement attached



3 

Introduction 

The Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (District) seeks bids from qualified 
contractors to paint the exterior of fire station 23, 7737 Yosemite Blvd. Modesto CA 95357. 
The Board requests bids from individuals and companies whose combination of experience 
and expertise will provide timely, cost-effective, and quality professional service to the district. 

Requirements 

• The successful bidder shall provide proof of insurance as required in the district’s 
form Public Project Agreement attached to this document. 

• As a “Public Works” project and pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the 
general prevailing wage rates for Stanislaus County shall apply to this contract, as 
determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations 

• The successful bidder shall be required to execute the district’s form Public Project 
Agreement 

Scope of Work 
 

The district seeks a contractor to paint the entirety of fire station 23 including the following. 
Prepare all surfaces to industry standard to accept paint. Make minor repairs as necessary.  
Paint body with two coats Sherwin Williams 7655 Stamped Concrete. 
Paint trim / accent areas with two coats Sherwin Williams 7068 Grizzle grey. 
Paint roll up doors with “Pierce #90 Red” (an automotive color)  
 

Description of work: 

Utilizing industry standard techniques, prepare surfaces and paint the exterior of fire station 

23. A one-story metal (butler) building fire station operated by the Stanislaus Consolidated 

Fire District.



4 

Summary of Requirements 
The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, and equipment necessary to 
complete the scope of work. 
All products used by the Contractor shall comply with all laws, codes, and industry 
standards for the products' intended uses and shall be used in accordance with 
manufacturer recommendations. 
The Contractor will be responsible for the protection of all items and surfaces not 
scheduled to be worked on, and these areas must be kept clean throughout the project. 
These areas include, but are not limited to, windows, walkways, doors, benches, vehicles 
and plant and tree material. The Contractor shall be responsible for repairing, at the 
Contractor’s expense, any damage that results from the work. 

All work performed, methods and equipment used shall be in conformance with the 
Prevailing State and Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act. Costs from delays and 
losses due to operations not in conformance with these acts, specifications, or stoppages 
by OSHA inspectors or the designated representative because of non-conformance shall 
be solely borne by the Contractor. 

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the protection and safety of the public and 
use appropriate means to ensure that the district’s employees and the public are safe 
during the project. 

The Contractor shall fully guarantee all work, materials and parts furnished and installed 
for one full year after completion. Defects shall be replaced or repaired at the Contractor’s 
expense. 

The fire station is open 24/7 and all work is to be performed in a way that emergency 
vehicle movement is not disturbed and impact to business traffic is minimized. Close 
coordination with the district’s project lead will be required to plan for alternative 
apparatus placement and/or traffic flow during the work to be performed. The Contractor 
shall be responsible for site clean-up daily after work has been performed and upon the 
completion of the project. Removal of all debris associated with the project at the site 
shall be in accordance with any local, state and federal regulations. All clean up 
performed shall ensure the property is presentable and fully clean before the work is 
completed. All ladders and stacked tools and equipment stored properly each evening in 
an acceptable safe location determined by the on-duty Battalion Chief.



5 

Onsite Visit 
An onsite visit is scheduled for April 29, 2024 @ 1330 hrs. Please RSVP with BC Scott 
Burke at sburke@scfpd.us to attend.  

Bid Instructions 

Interested individuals or firms must submit bids to Stanislaus Consolidated Fire District 
Attn: Deputy Chief Clint Bray. To be considered responsive, bids shall contain the 
following information:  Company Information 

o Company Legal Name 

o License 

o Address 

o Phone 

o Email 

• Description of experience with similar work, including recent jobs completed • 

Lump sum, not-to-exceed bid price to complete all required work. 
• Proposed project schedule (including start date and days to complete work) • 

Proof of required insurance (see attached Public Project Agreement)



6 

Evaluation Process 
District staff shall determine the lowest responsive bid from a responsible, qualified bidder (to 
be determined based on work experience). District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to 
reject any or all bids, to re-bid, or to waive inconsequential defects in bidding not involving 
time, price or quality of the work. Owner may reject any and all Bids and waive any minor 
irregularities in the bids. Final approval of any selected firm is subject to award by the District's 
Board of Directors, which may choose not to award for any reason. 

 
Questions 

Questions regarding this RFP shall be submitted in writing by e-mail to Stanislaus Fire 

Protection District: Deputy Chief Clint Bray: cbray@scfpd.us. Verbal questions will NOT be 

accepted. Answers to questions shall be provided in writing after the onsite visit and shall be 

provided to all prospective bidders attending the onsite visit. 

 
Timeframe 

The timeframe for this bid process is as follows: 
      
  Tuesday, April 23rd – Notice inviting bids sent out by District.  
  Monday, April 29th- Site visit  

Friday May 3rd   – Last date to submit questions to District.  
Friday May 10th – Last date to submit a bid/bid opening (5:00 PM) 
Thursday May 16th – Bid evaluation results provided by District for Award of Contract 

 
Public Records 

All information included in this document and the bids submitted to the district is subject to 

disclosure per the California Public Records Act. 

 
Disclaimer 

THIS IS A REQUEST FOR BIDS ONLY. It is intended to identify potential independent 
contractors. The information provided in this document is subject to change and is not binding 
on the district. The district has not made a commitment to procure any of the items discussed 
or to award a contract at the conclusion of the bid process. All costs of preparing and 
submitting a bid shall be borne by the bidder and shall not be reimbursed. All bids and 
supporting information submitted become District property and will not be returned.  

 

The contract to be awarded shall be in the form of the Public Project Agreement attached on 
the following pages. The provisions of this document will be incorporated in the awarded 
contract. By submitting a bid, the bidder agrees that upon award it will execute the Public 
Project Agreement when provided by the district and to be bound by its provisions. A bidder 
who takes exception to any provision of the attached form Public Project Agreement must 
indicate in the bid the provisions to which they object and reasons for the objection. No 
alterations to the form Public Project Agreement shall be made prior to execution of the 



7 

Agreement by the successful bidder, unless it is in response to an objection raised in the bid.



8 

PUBLIC PROJECT AGREEMENT 
FOR 

Paint Project 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, FIRE STATION 23 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into as of the  day of  , 2024 
by and between the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District hereinafter called 
"DISTRICT" and  hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR". 

 
RECITALS 

 
This Agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 

 
A. That DISTRICT desires to engage CONTRACTOR to perform work on a public works 

project. 
 

B. That CONTRACTOR is qualified to provide such services to the DISTRICT and. 
 

C. That the DISTRICT has elected to engage the services of CONTRACTOR upon the 
terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth. 

 
1. Services. The services to be performed by CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement shall include those services set forth in Exhibit A, which is, by 
this reference, incorporated herein and made a part hereof as though it were 
fully set forth herein. 

 
Performance of the work specified in said Exhibit A is hereby made an 
obligation of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, subject to any changes 
that may be made subsequently hereto upon the mutual written agreement 
of the said parties. 

 
Where in conflict, the terms of this Agreement supersede and prevail over 
any terms set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
2.  Term; Termination. 

(a) The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date 
hereinabove written and shall expire upon completion of performance of 
services hereunder by CONTRACTOR. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) above, either party may terminate 
this Agreement without cause by giving written notice not less than ten 
(10) days prior to the effective date of termination, which date shall be 
included in said notice. In the event of such termination, DISTRICT shall 
compensate CONTRACTOR for services rendered, and reimburse 
CONTRACTOR for costs and expenses incurred, to the date of termination, 
calculated in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 3. In ascertaining 
the services rendered to the date of termination, consideration shall be 
given both to completed work and work in process of completion. Nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed a limitation upon the right of DISTRICT 
to terminate this Agreement for cause, or otherwise



9 

to exercise such rights or pursue such remedies as may accrue to 
DISTRICT hereunder. 

 
3. Compensation; Expenses; Payment. DISTRICT shall compensate 

CONTRACTOR for all services performed by CONTRACTOR hereunder in 
an amount based upon CONTRACTOR’s hourly rates during the time of the 
performance of said services. A copy of CONTRACTOR’s hourly rates for 
which services hereunder shall be performed are set forth in 
CONTRACTOR’s fee schedule marked Exhibit “B” hereof, attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the combined total of compensation and 
reimbursement of costs payable hereunder shall not exceed the sum 
 ($ ) unless the performance 
of services and/or reimbursement of costs and expenses more than said 
amounts have been approved in advance of performing such services or 
incurring such costs by amendment to this Agreement. 

 
Compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses hereunder shall 
be payable upon monthly billing therefore by CONTRACTOR to DISTRICT, 
which billing shall include an itemized statement, briefly describing by task 
and labor category or cost/expense items billed. 

 
4. Additional Services. In the event DISTRICT desires the performance of 

additional services not otherwise included within the services described in 
Exhibit A, such services shall be authorized by amendment in advance of 
the performance. Such amendment to this Agreement shall include a 
description of the services to be performed thereunder, the maximum 
compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses payable therefor, 
the time of performance thereof, and such other matters as the parties deem 
appropriate for the accomplishment of such services. Except to the extent 
modified by written amendment, all other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be deemed incorporated in each such amendment. 

 
5. Records. CONTRACTOR shall keep and maintain accurate records of all time 

expended and costs and expenses incurred relating to services to be 
performed by CONTRACTOR hereunder. Said records shall be available to 
DISTRICT for review and copying during regular business hours at 
CONTRACTOR’s place of business or as otherwise agreed upon by the 
parties. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other papers, or 
copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and delivery to 
DISTRICT, become the property of DISTRICT. 

 
6. Authorization. This Agreement becomes effective when endorsed by both 

parties in the space provided below. 
 

7. Reliance on Professional Skill of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR represents 
that it has the necessary professional skills to perform the



10 

services required and the DISTRICT shall rely on the skills of the 
CONTRACTOR to do and perform the work. In performing services 
hereunder CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the standards generally 
prevailing for the performance of services like those to be performed by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder. 

 
8. Documents. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other papers, or 

copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and delivery to 
DISTRICT, become the property of DISTRICT. 

 
9. Relationship of Parties. It is understood that the relationship of CONTRACTOR 

to the DISTRICT is that of an independent contractor and all persons 
working for or under the direction of CONTRACTOR are its agents or 
employees and not agents or employees of the DISTRICT. 

 
10. Schedule. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the schedule set forth in Exhibit A; 

provided, that DISTRICT shall grant reasonable extensions of time for the 
performance of such services occasioned by governmental reviews of 
CONTRACTOR’s work product or other unavoidable delays; provided, 
further, that such unavoidable delay shall not include strikes, lockouts, work 
stoppages, or other labor disturbances conducted by, or on behalf of, 
CONTRACTOR’s officers or employees. 

 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges the importance to DISTRICT of DISTRICT’s 
Project schedule and agrees to put forth its best professional efforts to 
perform its services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with that 
schedule. 

 
11. Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR hereby 

agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless DISTRICT, its boards, 
commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and against any and all 
claims, suits, actions liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, 
without limitation, costs and fees of litigation) of every nature, kind or 
description, which may be brought against, or suffered or sustained by, 
DISTRICT, its boards, commissions, officers, employees or agents caused 
by, or alleged to have been caused by, the negligence, intentional tortuous 
act or omission, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors or agents in the performance of any services or 
work pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The duty of CONTRACTOR to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth 
herein, shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the 
California Civil Code; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall 
be construed to require CONTRACTOR to indemnify DISTRICT, its boards, 
commissions, officers, employees and agents against any responsibility or 
liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code.



11 

CONTRACTOR’s responsibility for such defense and indemnity obligations 
shall survive the termination or completion of this Agreement for the full 
period of time allowed by law. 

 
The defense and indemnification obligations of this agreement are 
undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the 
insurance obligations contained within this Agreement. 

 
12. Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall acquire and maintain Workers’ 

Compensation, employer’s liability, commercial general liability, and owned 
and non-owned and hired automobile liability insurance coverage relating to 
CONTRACTOR’s services to be performed hereunder covering DISTRICT’s 
risks in form subject to the approval of the DISTRICT Attorney and/or 
DISTRICT’s Risk Manager. The minimum amounts of coverage 
corresponding to the aforesaid categories of insurance per insurable event, 
shall be as follows: 

 
Insurance Category Minimum Limits 

Workers’ Compensation statutory minimum 

Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease 
 

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage. 

Automobile Liability $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage (coverage 

required to the extent applicable to 
CONTRACTOR’s vehicle usage in 

performing services hereunder) 
 

It shall be a requirement under this Agreement that any available insurance 
proceeds broader than or in excess of the specified minimum insurance 
coverage requirements and/or limits shall be available to the DISTRICT as 
an Additional Insured. Furthermore, the requirements for coverage and limits 
shall be the greater of either (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified 
in this Agreement or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of 
coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the named 
Insured. 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to include with all subcontractors in their 
subcontracts the same requirements and provisions of this agreement 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements to the extent they apply 
to the scope of the subcontractor’s work. Subcontractors hired by 
CONTRACTOR shall agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and DISTRICT 
in the same manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR is bound to 
DISTRICT under this Agreement and its accompanying



12 

documents. Subcontractors shall further agree to include these same 
provisions with any sub-subcontractors. A copy of the indemnity and 
insurance provisions of this Agreement will be furnished to the Subcontractor 
upon request. CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to provide a 
valid certificate of insurance and the required endorsements included in the 
subcontract agreement and will provide proof of compliance to the 
DISTRICT prior to commencement of any work by the subcontractor. 

 
Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall, on 
the Insurance Coverage form provided in Exhibit C or similar, furnish 
DISTRICT with certificates and copies of information or declaration pages 
of the insurance required hereunder and, with respect to evidence of 
commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance coverage, 
original endorsements: 

 
(a) Precluding cancellation or reduction in per occurrence limits before 

the expiration of thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment) after 
DISTRICT shall have received written notification of cancellation in 
coverage or reduction in per occurrence limits by first class mail; 

 
(b) Providing that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except 
with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability (cross liability 
endorsement); 

 
(c) Naming the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, its 

officers, boards, commissions, employees, and agents, as 
additional insureds; and 

 
(d) Providing that CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance with respect to Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection 
District, its officers, boards, commissions, employees, and agents, 
and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by DISTRICT for 
itself, its Council, officers, boards, commissions, employees, or 
agents shall be in excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and not 
contributory with it. CONTRACTOR and its insurer may not seek 
contribution from DISTRICT’s insurance or self-insurance. 

 
The limits of insurance required in this agreement may be satisfied by a 
combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or 
excess insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that 
such coverage shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis for 
the benefit of DISTRICT, to the extent required by this Agreement, before 
the DISTRICT’s insurance or self-insurance may be called upon to protect 
DISTRICT as a named Insured. 

 
All self-insured retentions (SIR) must be disclosed to DISTRICT for approval 
and shall not reduce the limits of liability coverage. Policies containing and 
SIR provision shall provide or be endorsed to provide that



13 

the SIR may be satisfied by either the named CONTRACTOR/Named 
Insured or DISTRICT. 

 
DISTRICT reserves the right to obtain a full certified copy of any insurance 
policy and endorsements. Failure to exercise this right shall not constitute a 
waiver of right to exercise later. 

 
Any and all Subcontractors shall agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and 
DISTRICT in the same manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR 
is bound to DISTRICT under this Agreement. Subcontractors shall further 
agree to include the same requirements and provisions of this Agreement, 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements, in any agreement with 
sub-subcontractors to the extent that they apply to the scope of the sub-
subcontractor’s work. A copy of the indemnity and insurance provisions of 
this Agreement shall be furnished to any subcontractor upon request. 

 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain insurance as required by this Agreement to 
the fullest amount allowed by law and shall maintain insurance for a 
minimum of five (5) years following completion of this project or service. In 
the event CONTRACTOR fails to obtain or maintain completed operations 
coverage as required by this Agreement, the DISTRICT at its sole discretion 
may purchase the coverage required and the cost will be paid by 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
13. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. CONTRACTOR certifies that he is aware of 

the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or 
to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, 
and CONTRACTOR certifies that he will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work of this agreement. 

 
14. PREVAILING WAGES. The services to be performed include public works 

within the meaning of Labor Code Sections 1720 through 1861, and 
CONTRACTOR must comply with state laws pertaining to prevailing wage 
and labor requirements, as more fully described in Exhibit E attached hereto 
and incorporated in this Agreement by reference. 

15. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, 
sex or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed and the employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, advancement, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
CONTRACTOR shall at all times be in compliance with the requirements of 
the Federal Americans With Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336) which



14 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities. The 
CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the 
DISTRICT setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

 
16. Notice. All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to the DISTRICT 

and CONTRACTOR in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 

 
DISTRICT: Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

3324 Topeka St. 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

Attention: Deputy Chief Clint Bray 
 

CONTRACTOR:   
(Fill in CONTRACTOR Name, Address, Phone 

Number, and Project Manager 
for 

CONTRACTOR) 
 

17. Non-Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in part. 
 

18. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written 
agreement signed by both parties. 

 
19. Validity. The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement 

shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 
 

20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California and any suit or action initiated by either party shall be brought in 
the County of San Mateo, California. In the event of litigation between the 
parties hereto to enforce any provision of the Agreement, the unsuccessful 
party will pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses of litigation of the 
successful party. 

 
21. Mediation. Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, the parties shall 

meet in mediation and attempt to reach a resolution with the assistance of a 
mutually acceptable mediator. Neither party shall be permitted to file legal 
action without first meeting in mediation and making a good faith attempt to 
reach a mediated resolution. The costs of the mediator, if any, shall be paid 
equally by the parties. If a mediated settlement is reached neither party shall 
be deemed the prevailing party for purposes of the settlement and each 
party shall bear its own legal costs. 

 
22. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR may serve other clients, but none who 

conduct business would place CONTRACTOR in a "conflict of interest" as 
that term is defined in State law.



15 

23. Payment Bond. Pursuant to Civil Code section 9550, if the not-to-exceed 
compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR under Section 3, above, is in 
excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000), CONTRACTOR shall 
submit a payment bond acceptable to DISTRICT prior to the 
commencement of work. 

 
24. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits A, B C, D, E, and F, 

comprises the entire Agreement. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
on the date first above written by their respective officers duly authorized in that behalf. 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

Dated:  Clint Bray, Deputy Chief 

 
 

Dated:   Greg Bernardi, Board President 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Dated:  
 
 
 
Frank Splendorio, District Legal Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR

Dated:  
 
 
Type Name & Title 
of CONTRACTOR 
Authorized to Sign



16 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK AND SCHEDULE 
FOR 

Paint Project 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District Station 23 

 
Scope of Work 
The district is seeking a professional firm (Contractor) to complete exterior paint of fire 
station 23, 7737 Yosemite Blvd. Modesto CA. 95357 
 
The district seeks a contractor to paint the entirety of fire station 23 including the following. 
Prepare all surfaces to industry standard to accept paint. Make minor repairs as necessary.  
Paint body with two coats Sherwin Williams 7655 Stamped Concrete. 
Paint trim / accent areas with two coats Sherwin Williams 7068 Grizzle grey. 
Paint roll up doors with “Pierce #90 Red” (an automotive color)  
 

Description of work: 
 
 Utilizing industry standard techniques, prepare surfaces and paint the exterior of fire station 23. 

 A one-story metal (butler) building fire station operated by the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire District.
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 

CONTRACTOR’S FEE SCHEDULE



17 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 

INSURANCE FORMS 
 

CONTRACTOR shall provide, in addition to the Certificates of Insurance, original 
Endorsement affecting the coverages specified in Section 12 - INSURANCE of the 
Agreement on the attached form. No substitute form will be accepted. 

 
ATTACHED 

 
1. Insurance Coverage Form



18 

EXHIBIT D 
This INSURANCE COVERAGE FORM modifies or documents insurance provided under the following: 

 
Named Insured: Effective Work Date(s): 

 
Description of Work/Locations/Vehicles: 
ADDITIONAL INSURED: Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (DISTRICT) 

3324 Topeka St. Riverbank, CA 95367 
Attention:   

Contract Administrator 

Endorsement and Certificates of Insurance Required 
The Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers  
are included as insureds with regard to damages and defense of claims arising from: (Check  
all that apply) 

Insurer Policy 
No. 

General Liability: (a) activities performed by or on behalf of the Named 
Insured, (b) products and completed operations of the Named Insured, (c) 
premises owned, leased occupied or used by the Named Insured, and/or 
(d) permits issued for operations performed by the Named Insured. {Note: 
MEETS OR EXCEEDS ISO Form # CG 20 10 11 85} 

  

Auto Liability: the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or 
unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Named 
Insured, regardless of whether liability is attributable to the Named Insured 
or a combination of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured, its 
elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. 

  

Other: 
  

Certificates of Insurance Required (no endorsement needed) (Check all that 
apply) 

Insurer Policy 
No. 

Workers Compensation: work performed by employees of the Named 
Insured while those employees are engaged in work under the simultaneous 
directions and control of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured. 

  

Professional Liability: 
  

 

 
PRIMARY/NON-CONTRIBUTORY: This insurance is primary and is not additional to or contributing with any other insurance carried by or 
for the benefit of Additional Insureds. 

 
SEVERABILITY OF INTEREST: The insurance afforded by this policy applies separately to each insured who is seeking coverage or 
against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limit of liability. 

 
PROVISIONS REGARDING THE INSURED'S DUTIES AFTER ACCIDENT OR LOSS: Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of 
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

 
CANCELLATION NOTICE. The insurance afforded by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits 
except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice (ten (10) days if canceled due to non-payment) by regular mail return receipt requested has 
been given to the Additional Insured. Such notice shall be addressed as shown above. 

 
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: The insurer(s) named above agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the DISTRICT, its elected or 
appointed officers, officials, agents, volunteers and employees for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from work performed 
by the Named Insured for the DISTRICT. 

Nothing herein contained shall vary, alter or extend any provision or condition of the Policy other than as above 
stated. SIGNATURE OF INSURER OR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE INSURER 

I,  (print/type name), warrant that I have authority to bind the 
above-named insurance company and by my signature hereon do so bind this company.



19 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (original signature required) 

ORGANIZATION: TITLE: 

ADDRESS: 
 

TELEPHONE: ( ) DATE ISSUED:



20 

EXHIBIT E 

 
LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS 

 

1. Public Works Project/ Prevailing Wage. The work to be performed under this Agreement is for 
“Public Works” within the meaning of Labor Code Sections 1720 to 1861. CONTRACTOR must 
therefore comply with state prevailing wage and labor law (California Labor Code Sections 1720 to 
1780, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, commencing with Section 16000) 
for work performed under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR’s obligations under prevailing wage and 
labor compliance laws include, among other things, to: pay at least the applicable prevailing wage 
and travel and subsistence payments for public works activities performed under this Agreement; 
comply with overtime and working hour requirements; comply with apprenticeship obligations; 
comply with payroll recordkeeping requirements; and comply with other obligations as required by 
law. Copies of the applicable prevailing wage rates are on file with the DISTRICT’s Project Manager, 
and shall be made available to any interested party upon request. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 
the above requirements are included in all its contracts and any lower tier subcontracts for activities 
for the Project. 

2. Registration with Department of Industrial Relations. This project is subject to compliance 
monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. CONTRACTOR must be 
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations under Labor Code section 1725.5 when 
bidding and throughout performance of this agreement. 

3. Wage Rates. 

3(A).  It shall be mandatory upon CONTRACTOR and upon any subcontractor to pay not less than 
the specified rates to all laborers, workers, and mechanics employed in the execution of the 
Contract. It is further expressly stipulated that CONTRACTOR shall, as a penalty to 
DISTRICT, forfeit two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each laborer, worker, or mechanic paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for any work 
done under this Agreement by CONTRACTOR or by any subcontractor; and CONTRACTOR 
agrees to comply with all provisions of Section 1775 of the Labor Code. 

3(B).  The DISTRICT will not recognize any claim for additional compensation because of the 
payment by the CONTRACTOR of any wage rate in excess of the prevailing wage rate set 
forth in the Agreement. The possibility of wage increases is one of the elements to be 
considered by the CONTRACTOR in determining its bid, and will not under any circumstances 
be considered as the basis of a claim against the DISTRICT on the Agreement. 

4. Payroll Records. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor must comply with Labor Code 
Section 1776 and all requirements of contractors stated therein for the maintenance, inspection and 
certification of payroll records. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor who fails to timely 
furnish payroll records or make the records available for inspection will forfeit to the DISTRICT the 
penalty for non-compliance set forth in Labor Code Section 1776 for their respective failure. 

5. Discrimination. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor must comply with the anti 
discrimination requirements of Labor Code Section 1777.6.



21 

EXHIBIT F 

 
A. Required Provisions On Contract Claim Resolution 

Any claim arising under this contract which the CONTRACTOR wishes to assert against the DISTRICT (“public 
entity”) shall be governed by California Public Contract Code Section 9204. Claims which do not exceed three 
hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) are also subject to the provisions of Article 
1.5 of the California Public Contract Code (commencing with Section 20104). Pursuant to California Public 
Contracts Code Section 9204, claims shall be resolved as follows: 

 
1. (a) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim applies shall conduct a 

reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a 
written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon 
receipt of a claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period 
provided in this subdivision. 

 
(b) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim, pursuant to Document 00 7200 
(General Conditions), Article 12. 

 
(c) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant a written statement 
identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet 
within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by 
registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following 
the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to 
provide the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 

 
(d) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after 
the public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph 
(3) shall apply. 

 
2. (a) If the claimant disputes the public entity’s written response, or if the public entity fails to respond to a claim 

issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing 
sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet 
and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 

 
(b) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any 
portion of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying 
the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an 
undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its 
written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted 
to nonbinding mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs equally. The public 
entity and claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the 
claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a 
mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed 
portion of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection 
with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in 
dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section. 

 
(c) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, 
neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in 
dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to 
the timeframes in this section. 

 
(d) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the mediation conducted 
pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has 
been commenced.



22 

(e) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes under private arbitration 
or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ 
dispute. 

 
3. Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods described in 
this subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall result in the claim being 
deemed 

rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the public entity’s failure to have responded to a claim, or 
its failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard 

to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant. 
 

4. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 percent per annum. 
 

5. If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a public entity because 
privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public entity a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf 
or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by 
the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting 
that the claim be presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. 
Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to 
whether the contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did not present the 
claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so. 

 
A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, however, that (1) 
upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to 
the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe 
reasonable change order, claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the 
provisions of this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the 
timeframes and procedures set forth in this section. 

 
Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants available through 
a competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its contractual obligations. 

B. Compliance With Americans With Disabilities Act 

1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), programs, services and 
other activities provided by a public entity to the public, whether directly or through a Contractor, must be 
accessible to the disabled public. CONTRACTOR shall provide the services specified in the Contract Documents 
in a manner that complies with the ADA and any and all other applicable federal, state and local disability rights 
legislation. CONTRACTOR agrees not to discriminate against disabled persons in the provision of services, 
benefits or activities provided under the Contract Documents and further agrees that any violation of this 
prohibition on the part of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents or assigns shall constitute a material breach of 
the Contract Documents. 

C. Compliance With IRCA 

1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that CONTRACTOR, and all subcontractors hired by CONTRACTOR to perform 
services under this Agreement, are aware of and understand the Immigration Reform and Control Act (IRCA). 
CONTRACTOR is and shall remain in compliance with the IRCA and shall ensure that any subcontractors hired 
by CONTRACTOR to perform services under this Agreement are in compliance with the IRCA. In addition, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Owner, its agents, officers and employees, from 
any liability, damages or causes of action arising out of or relating to any claims that CONTRACTOR’s 
employees, or employees of any subcontractor hired by CONTRACTOR, are not authorized to work in the United 
States for CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor and/or any other claims based upon alleged IRCA violations 
committed by CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’s subcontractors. 15 

































  
 

     Item 12.E 
 

STAFF REPORT  
 
TO:   President Bernardi and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Deputy Chief Clint Bray 
 
SUBJECT: Station 26 Bathroom Remodel Bids 
 
DATE: May 16, 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open sealed bids, review, discuss, and award bid for the remodel of both bathrooms at Station 26. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At the October 11th, 2023 Capital Improvements Committee meeting, it was decided that the District 
would pursue facility improvements and long term repairs. Currently, the District addresses issues as 
they arise with hopes of encountering any major and unexpected repairs. 
 
The committee decided to pursue the three following projects as a priority: 

 Exterior painting of Station 22 
 Exterior painting of Station 23 
 Remodel of both bathrooms at Station 26 

 
The District opened all three projects to bid on April 23rd, 2024. Contractors turned all sealed bids in 
before the deadline of May 10th, 2024. Sealed bids were opened by District staff and reviewed. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
As decided at the October 11th, 2023 Capital Improvements meeting, funding for these projects will 
come from the Capital Expenditures account. The Capital Expenditures account currently has a 
balance of $870,113.54.  
 
 
RECOMENDATION: 
 
District staff recommends the Board award the Station 26 bathroom remodel project to the lowest 
bidder, California Building Structures Inc., with a total bid amount of $55,000.00 with an added 

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us  

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 12.E



  
 

performance bond for $1,900.00 bringing the total bid amount to $56,900.00. 



 

 
 

Project and Bid Description 
Bathroom Remodel Project at 

Stanislaus Fire Protection District 
Fire Station 26 

 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: 

Scott Burke, Battalion Chief  
March 7th, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 



1  

Contents 

Introduction. ..................................................................................................................... 3 

Requirements. ................................................................................................................. 3 

Scope of Work ................................................................................................................. 3 

Summary of Requirements............................................................................................ 3 

Onsite Visit. ..................................................................................................................... 4 

Bid Instructions. .............................................................................................................. 4 

Evaluation Process. ........................................................................................................ 5 

Questions. ........................................................................................................................ 5 

Timeframe. ...................................................................................................................... 5 

Public Records. ................................................................................................................ 5 

Disclaimer ........................................................................................................................ 5 

Form Agreement. .............................................................................................................. 5 
 

-Form Public Project Agreement attached 



2  

Introduction 

The Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (District) seeks bids from qualified 
contractors to remodel two bathrooms at Fire Station 26, located at 3318 Topeka St. 
Riverbank, CA 95367. The Board requests bids from individuals and companies whose 
combination of experience and expertise will provide timely, cost-effective and quality 
professional service to the District. 

Requirements 

• The successful bidder shall provide proof of insurance as required in the District's 
form Public Project Agreement attached to this document 

• As a “Public Works” project and pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the 
general prevailing wage rates for Stanislaus County shall apply to this contract, as 
determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations 

• The successful bidder shall be required to execute the District's form Public Project 
Agreement 

Scope of Work 
The District is seeking a professional firm (Contractor) to complete the bathroom 
remodel project at Fire Station 26, located at 3318 Topeka St. Riverbank CA 95367. 
The chosen Contractor will be performing the following: 

Fire Station 26 bathroom remodel project 

Description of work: 

The project is on the second floor of fire station 26. The two bathrooms being remodeled share a wall 

and are considered separate bathrooms with their own entry door. They each are eight feet by five 

feet in size. The scope of the project shall include the demolition and removal of existing features to 

make ready for remodel. The new bathrooms shall include the replacement of all fixtures, necessary 

wiring, plumbing and valves to accommodate a complete remodel. 

The remodeled bathrooms shall consist of: 

Toilet: Kohler Highline classic elongated toilet - white 

Toilet paper holder: Commercial grade stainless steel. 

Vanity: 30” double door commercial vanity - melamine dark wood grain 

Sink / top and backsplash: Corian with molded sink (no seams) - Gray onyx color/white sink 

Sink /shower fixtures: Delta commercial grade Stainless ( Lahara ) 

Shower: Corian Gray Onyx Solid surface, Glass doors w/towel bar SS 

Mirror: Matching vanity top size 

Lights : Commercial grade LED: Main and Vanity light sufficient to provide high quality illumination. 

Electric plug opposite toilet and at vanity. New switches and plugs 

Exhaust fan: Commercial high capacity 

Flooring: Commercial grade Luxury vinyl plank - dark color 

Paint / walls: All sheet rocked textured areas with quality latex in swiss coffee or similar 

Trim / base: all associated trim and baseboards to be included. 



3  

Summary of Requirements 
The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment necessary to 
complete the scope of work. 
All products used by the Contractor shall comply with all laws, codes and industry 
standards for the products' intended uses and shall be used in accordance with 
manufacturer recommendations. 
The Contractor will be responsible for the protection of all items and surfaces not 
scheduled to be worked on, and these areas must be kept clean throughout the project. 
These areas include, but are not limited to, windows, walkways, doors, benches, vehicles 
and plant and tree material. The Contractor shall be responsible for repairing, at the 
Contractor’s expense, any damage that results from the work. 

All work performed, methods and equipment used shall be in conformance with the 
Prevailing State and Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act. Costs from delays and 
losses due to operations not in conformance to these acts, specifications, or stoppages 
by OSHA inspectors or the designated representative because of non-conformance shall 
be solely borne by the Contractor. 

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the protection and safety of the public and 
use appropriate means to ensure that the District's employees and the public are safe 
during the project. 

The Contractor shall fully guarantee all work, materials and parts furnished and installed 
for one full year after completion. Defects shall be replaced or repaired at the Contractor’s 
expense. 

The fire station is open 24/7 and all work is to be performed in a way that emergency 
vehicle movement is not disturbed and impact to business traffic is minimized. Close 
coordination with the District's project lead will be required to plan for alternative 
apparatus placement and/or traffic flow during the work to be performed. The Contractor 
shall be responsible for site clean-up daily after work has been performed and upon the 
completion of the project. Removal of all debris associated with the project at the site 
shall be in accordance with any local, state and federal regulations. All clean up 
performed shall ensure the property is presentable and fully clean before the work is 
completed. All ladders and stacked tools and equipment stored properly each evening in 
an acceptable safe location determined by the on-duty Battalion Chief. 



4  

Onsite Visit 
An onsite visit is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, April 16th, with Chief Clint Bray or 
designee. The visit will start at 1:00 p.m. at 3318 Topeka St. Riverbank, CA 95367. All 
bidders are required to RSVP to Battalion Chief Scott Burke via email prior to attending 
at: sburke@scfpd.us 

Bid Instructions 

Interested individuals or firms must submit bids to Stanislaus Consolidated Fire District 
Attn: Deputy Chief Clint Bray. To be considered responsive, bids shall contain the 
following information: • Company Information 

o Company Legal Name 
o License 
o Address 
o Phone 
o Email 

• Description of experience with similar work, including recent jobs completed • 

Lump sum, not-to-exceed bid price to complete all required work 
• Proposed project schedule (including start date and days to complete work) • 

Proof of required insurance (see attached Public Project Agreement) 



5  

Evaluation Process 
District staff shall determine the lowest responsive bid from a responsible, qualified bidder (to 
be determined based on work experience). District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to 
reject any or all bids, to re-bid, or to waive non-material defects in bidding. Final approval of 
any selected firm as the apparent low bidder is subject to award by the District's Board of 
Directors, which may choose not to award for any reason. 

 
Questions 

Questions regarding this RFP shall be submitted in writing by e-mail to Stanislaus Fire 

Protection District: Deputy Chief Clint Bray: cbray@scfpd.us. Verbal questions will NOT be 

accepted. Answers to questions shall be provided in writing after the onsite visit and shall be 

provided to all prospective bidders attending the onsite visit. 

 
Timeframe 

The timeframe for this bid process is as follows: 
 

Tuesday, April 23rd  – Notice inviting bids sent out by District  
Friday May 3rd   – Last date to submit questions to District  
Friday May 10th  – Last date to submit a bid/bid opening (5:00 PM) 
Thursday May 16th  – Bid evaluation results provided by District for Award of Contract 

 
Public Records 

All information included in this document and the bids submitted to the District is subject to 

disclosure per the California Public Records Act. 

 
Disclaimer 
THIS IS A REQUEST FOR BIDS ONLY. It is intended to identify potential independent 
contractors. The information provided in this document is subject to change and is not binding 
on the District. The District has not made a commitment to procure any of the items discussed 
or to award a contract at the conclusion of the bid process. All costs of preparing and 
submitting a bid shall be borne by the bidder and shall not be reimbursed. All bids and 
supporting information submitted become District property and will not be returned. 



6  

Form Agreement 

The contract to be awarded shall be in the form of the Public Project Agreement attached on 
the following pages. Please be advised, the District reserves the right to make modifications 
and changes to the Agreement prior to execution. The bidder, however, should bid expecting 
that the provisions of this form Agreement will be incorporated in the awarded contract. By 
submitting a bid, the bidder agrees that upon award it will execute the Public Project 
Agreement when provided by the District and to be bound by its provisions. A bidder who 
takes exception to any provision of the attached form Public Project Agreement must indicate 
in the bid the provisions to which they object and reasons for the objection. Any exceptions 
taken will not be deemed non-responsive.  No alterations to the form Public Project Agreement 
shall be made prior to execution of the Agreement by the successful bidder, unless it is in 
response to an exception raised in the bid. 



7  

PUBLIC PROJECT AGREEMENT 
FOR 

BATHROOM REMODEL PROJECT AT 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, FIRE STATION 26 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into as of the  day of  , 2024 
by and between the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District hereinafter called 
"DISTRICT" and  hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR". 

 
RECITALS 

 
This Agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 

 
A. That DISTRICT desires to engage CONTRACTOR to perform work on a public works 

project; 
 

B. That CONTRACTOR is qualified to provide such services to the DISTRICT and; 
 

C. That the DISTRICT has elected to engage the services of CONTRACTOR upon the 
terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth. 

 
1. Services. The services to be performed by CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement shall include those services set forth in Exhibit A, which is, by 
this reference, incorporated herein and made a part hereof as though it were 
fully set forth herein. 

 
Performance of the work specified in said Exhibit A is hereby made an 
obligation of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, subject to any changes 
that may be made subsequently hereto upon the mutual written agreement 
of the said parties. 

 
Where in conflict, the terms of this Agreement supersede and prevail over 
any terms set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
2.  Term; Termination. 

(a) The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date 
hereinabove written and shall expire upon completion of performance of 
services hereunder by CONTRACTOR. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) above, either party may terminate 
this Agreement without cause by giving written notice not less than ten 
(10) days prior to the effective date of termination, which date shall be 
included in said notice. In the event of such termination, DISTRICT shall 
compensate CONTRACTOR for services rendered, and reimburse 
CONTRACTOR for costs and expenses incurred, to the date of termination, 
calculated in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 3. In ascertaining 
the services actually rendered to the date of termination, consideration shall 
be given both to completed work and work in process of completion. Nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed a limitation upon the right of DISTRICT 
to terminate this Agreement for cause, or otherwise 



8  

to exercise such rights or pursue such remedies as may accrue to 
DISTRICT hereunder. 

 
3. Compensation; Expenses; Payment. DISTRICT shall compensate 

CONTRACTOR for all services performed by CONTRACTOR hereunder in 
an amount based upon CONTRACTOR’s hourly rates during the time of the 
performance of said services. A copy of CONTRACTOR’s hourly rates for 
which services hereunder shall be performed are set forth in 
CONTRACTOR’s fee schedule marked Exhibit “B” hereof, attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the combined total of compensation and 
reimbursement of costs payable hereunder shall not exceed the sum 
 ($ ) unless the performance 
of services and/or reimbursement of costs and expenses in excess of said 
amounts have been approved in advance of performing such services or 
incurring such costs by amendment to this Agreement. 

 
Compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses hereunder shall 
be payable upon monthly billing therefore by CONTRACTOR to DISTRICT, 
which billing shall include an itemized statement, briefly describing by task 
and labor category or cost/expense items billed. 

 
4. Additional Services. In the event DISTRICT desires the performance of 

additional services not otherwise included within the services described in 
Exhibit A, such services shall be authorized by amendment in advance of 
the performance. Such amendment to this Agreement shall include a 
description of the services to be performed thereunder, the maximum 
compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses payable therefor, 
the time of performance thereof, and such other matters as the parties deem 
appropriate for the accomplishment of such services. Except to the extent 
modified by written amendment, all other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be deemed incorporated in each such amendment. 

 
5. Records. CONTRACTOR shall keep and maintain accurate records of all time 

expended and costs and expenses incurred relating to services to be 
performed by CONTRACTOR hereunder. Said records shall be available to 
DISTRICT for review and copying during regular business hours at 
CONTRACTOR’s place of business or as otherwise agreed upon by the 
parties. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other papers, or 
copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and delivery to 
DISTRICT, become the property of DISTRICT. 

 
6. Authorization. This Agreement becomes effective when endorsed by both 

parties in the space provided below. 
 

7. Reliance on Professional Skill of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR represents 
that it has the necessary professional skills to perform the 



9  

services required and the DISTRICT shall rely on such skills of the 
CONTRACTOR to do and perform the work. In performing services 
hereunder CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the standards generally 
prevailing for the performance of services similar to those to be performed 
by CONTRACTOR hereunder. 

 
8. Documents. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other papers, or 

copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by CONTRACTOR pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and delivery to 
DISTRICT, become the property of DISTRICT. 

 
9. Relationship of Parties. It is understood that the relationship of CONTRACTOR 

to the DISTRICT is that of an independent contractor and all persons 
working for or under the direction of CONTRACTOR are its agents or 
employees and not agents or employees of the DISTRICT. 

 
10. Schedule. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the schedule set forth in Exhibit A; 

provided, that DISTRICT shall grant reasonable extensions of time for the 
performance of such services occasioned by governmental reviews of 
CONTRACTOR’s work product or other unavoidable delays; provided, 
further, that such unavoidable delay shall not include strikes, lockouts, work 
stoppages, or other labor disturbances conducted by, or on behalf of, 
CONTRACTOR’s officers or employees. 

 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges the importance to DISTRICT of DISTRICT’s 
Project schedule and agrees to put forth its best professional efforts to 
perform its services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with that 
schedule. 

 
11. Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR hereby 

agrees to defend, indemnify, and save harmless DISTRICT, its boards, 
commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and against any and all 
claims, suits, actions liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, 
without limitation, costs and fees of litigation) of every nature, kind or 
description, which may be brought against, or suffered or sustained by, 
DISTRICT, its boards, commissions, officers, employees or agents caused 
by, or alleged to have been caused by, the negligence, intentional tortuous 
act or omission, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors or agents in the performance of any services or 
work pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The duty of CONTRACTOR to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth 
herein, shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the 
California Civil Code; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall 
be construed to require CONTRACTOR to indemnify DISTRICT, its boards, 
commissions, officers, employees and agents against any responsibility or 
liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code. 



10  

CONTRACTOR’s responsibility for such defense and indemnity obligations 
shall survive the termination or completion of this Agreement for the full 
period of time allowed by law. 

 
The defense and indemnification obligations of this agreement are 
undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the 
insurance obligations contained within this Agreement. 

 
12. Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall acquire and maintain Workers’ 

Compensation, employer’s liability, commercial general liability, and owned 
and non-owned and hired automobile liability insurance coverage relating to 
CONTRACTOR’s services to be performed hereunder covering DISTRICT’s 
risks in form subject to the approval of the DISTRICT Attorney and/or 
DISTRICT’s Risk Manager. The minimum amounts of coverage 
corresponding to the aforesaid categories of insurance per insurable event, 
shall be as follows: 

 
Insurance Category Minimum Limits 

Workers’ Compensation statutory minimum 

Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease 
 

Commercial General Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 
aggregate for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage 

Automobile Liability $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage (coverage 

required to the extent applicable to 
CONTRACTOR’s vehicle usage in 

performing services hereunder) 
 

It shall be a requirement under this Agreement that any available insurance 
proceeds broader than or in excess of the specified minimum insurance 
coverage requirements and/or limits shall be available to the DISTRICT as 
an Additional Insured. Furthermore, the requirements for coverage and limits 
shall be the greater of either (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified 
in this Agreement or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of 
coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the named 
Insured. 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to include with all subcontractors in their 
subcontracts the same requirements and provisions of this agreement 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements to the extent they apply 
to the scope of the subcontractor’s work. Subcontractors hired by 
CONTRACTOR shall agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and DISTRICT 
in the same manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR is bound to 
DISTRICT under this Agreement and its accompanying 



11  

documents. Subcontractors shall further agree to include these same 
provisions with any sub-subcontractors. A copy of the indemnity and 
insurance provisions of this Agreement will be furnished to the Subcontractor 
upon request. CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to provide a 
valid certificate of insurance and the required endorsements included in the 
subcontract agreement and will provide proof of compliance to the 
DISTRICT prior to commencement of any work by the subcontractor. 

 
Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall, on 
the Insurance Coverage form provided in Exhibit C or similar, furnish 
DISTRICT with certificates and copies of information or declaration pages 
of the insurance required hereunder and, with respect to evidence of 
commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance coverage, 
original endorsements: 

 
(a) Precluding cancellation or reduction in per occurrence limits before 

the expiration of thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment) after 
DISTRICT shall have received written notification of cancellation in 
coverage or reduction in per occurrence limits by first class mail; 

 
(b) Providing that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except 
with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability (cross liability 
endorsement); 

 
(c) Naming the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, its 

officers, boards, commissions, employees, and agents, as 
additional insureds; and 

 
(d) Providing that CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance with respect to Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection 
District, its officers, boards, commissions, employees, and agents, 
and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by DISTRICT for 
itself, its Council, officers, boards, commissions, employees, or 
agents shall be in excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and not 
contributory with it. CONTRACTOR and its insurer may not seek 
contribution from DISTRICT’s insurance or self-insurance. 

 
The limits of insurance required in this agreement may be satisfied by a 
combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or 
excess insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that 
such coverage shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis for 
the benefit of DISTRICT, to the extent required by this Agreement, before 
the DISTRICT’s insurance or self-insurance may be called upon to protect 
DISTRICT as a named Insured. 

 
All self-insured retentions (SIR) must be disclosed to DISTRICT for approval 
and shall not reduce the limits of liability coverage. Policies containing and 
SIR provision shall provide or be endorsed to provide that 



12  

the SIR may be satisfied by either the named CONTRACTOR/Named 
Insured or DISTRICT. 

 
DISTRICT reserves the right to obtain a full certified copy of any insurance 
policy and endorsements. Failure to exercise this right shall not constitute a 
waiver of right to exercise later. 

 
Any and all Subcontractors shall agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and 
DISTRICT in the same manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR 
is bound to DISTRICT under this Agreement. Subcontractors shall further 
agree to include the same requirements and provisions of this Agreement, 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements, in any agreement with 
sub-subcontractors to the extent that they apply to the scope of the sub-
subcontractor’s work. A copy of the indemnity and insurance provisions of 
this Agreement shall be furnished to any subcontractor upon request. 

 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain insurance as required by this Agreement to 
the fullest amount allowed by law and shall maintain insurance for a 
minimum of five (5) years following completion of this project or service. In 
the event CONTRACTOR fails to obtain or maintain completed operations 
coverage as required by this Agreement, the DISTRICT at its sole discretion 
may purchase the coverage required and the cost will be paid by 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
13. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. CONTRACTOR certifies that he is aware of 

the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or 
to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, 
and CONTRACTOR certifies that he will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work of this agreement. 

 
14. PREVAILING WAGES. The services to be performed include public works 

within the meaning of Labor Code Sections 1720 through 1861, and 
CONTRACTOR must comply with state laws pertaining to prevailing wage 
and labor requirements, as more fully described in Exhibit E attached hereto 
and incorporated in this Agreement by reference. 

15. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, 
sex or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed and the employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, advancement, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
CONTRACTOR shall at all times be in compliance with the requirements of 
the Federal Americans With Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336) which 



13  

prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities. The 
CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the 
DISTRICT setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

 
16. Notice. All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to the DISTRICT 

and CONTRACTOR in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 

 
DISTRICT: Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

3324 Topeka St. 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

Attention: Deputy Chief Clint Bray 
 

CONTRACTOR:   
(Fill in CONTRACTOR Name, Address, Phone 

Number, and Project Manager for 
CONTRACTOR) 

 
17. Non-Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in part. 

 
18. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written 

agreement signed by both parties. 
 

19. Validity. The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

California and any suit or action initiated by either party shall be brought in 
the County of San Mateo, California. In the event of litigation between the 
parties hereto to enforce any provision of the Agreement, the 
unsuccessful party will pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses of 
litigation of the successful party. 

 
21. Mediation. Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, the parties shall 

meet in mediation and attempt to reach a resolution with the assistance of a 
mutually acceptable mediator. Neither party shall be permitted to file legal 
action without first meeting in mediation and making a good faith attempt to 
reach a mediated resolution. The costs of the mediator, if any, shall be paid 
equally by the parties. If a mediated settlement is reached neither party shall 
be deemed the prevailing party for purposes of the settlement and each 
party shall bear its own legal costs. 

 
22. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR may serve other clients, but none who 

conduct business would place CONTRACTOR in a "conflict of interest" as 
that term is defined in State law. 



14  

23. Payment Bond. Pursuant to Civil Code section 9550, if the not-to-exceed 
compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR under Section 3, above, is in 
excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000), CONTRACTOR shall 
submit a payment bond acceptable to DISTRICT prior to the 
commencement of work. 

 
24. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits A, B C, D, E, and F, 

comprises the entire Agreement. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
on the date first above written by their respective officers duly authorized in that behalf. 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

Dated:  Clint Bray, Deputy Chief 

 
 

Dated:   Greg Bernardi, Board President 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 

Dated:  
Frank Splendorio, District Legal Counsel 

 
 

CONTRACTOR 
 

Dated:  
 Name & Title of CONTRACTOR 
Authorized to Sign 



15  

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK AND SCHEDULE 
FOR 

Bathroom Repair Project at 
Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District Station 26 

 
Scope of Work 
The District is seeking a professional firm (Contractor) to complete the bathroom remodel 
project at Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District station 26, 3318 Topeka St. 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

 
 

Contractor will be performing the following: 
Remodel Two Fire Station Bathrooms: 

Fire Station 26 bathroom remodel project 

Description of work: 

The project is on the second floor of fire station 26. The two bathrooms being remodeled share a wall 

and are considered separate bathrooms with their own entry door. They each are eight feet by five 

feet in size. The scope of the project shall include the demolition and removal of existing features to 

make ready for remodel. The new bathrooms shall include the replacement of all fixtures, necessary 

wiring, plumbing and valves to accommodate a complete remodel. 

The remodeled bathrooms shall consist of: 

Toilet: Kohler Highline classic elongated toilet - white 

Toilet paper holder: Commercial grade stainless steel. 

Vanity: 30” double door commercial vanity - melamine dark wood grain 

Sink / top and backsplash: Corian with molded sink (no seams) - Gray onyx color/white sink 

Sink /shower fixtures: Delta commercial grade Stainless ( Lahara ) 

Shower: Corian Gray Onyx Solid surface, glass doors with towel bar SS 

Mirror: Matching vanity top size 

Lights : Commercial grade LED: Main and Vanity light sufficient to provide high quality illumination. 

Electric plug opposite toilet and at vanity. New switches and plugs 

Exhaust fan: Commercial high capacity 

Flooring: Commercial grade Luxury vinyl plank - dark color 

Paint / walls: All sheetrocked textured areas with quality latex in swiss coffee or similar 

Trim / base: all associated trim and baseboards to be included. 



16  

All work is to be completed within 120 days of contract signing. 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 

CONTRACTOR’S FEE SCHEDULE 



17  

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 

INSURANCE FORMS 
 

CONTRACTOR shall provide, in addition to the Certificates of Insurance, original 
Endorsement affecting the coverages specified in Section 12 - INSURANCE of the 
Agreement on the attached form. No substitute form will be accepted. 

 
ATTACHED 

 
1. Insurance Coverage Form 



18  

EXHIBIT D 
This INSURANCE COVERAGE FORM modifies or documents insurance provided under the following: 

 
Named Insured: Effective Work Date(s): 

 
Description of Work/Locations/Vehicles: 
ADDITIONAL INSURED: Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (DISTRICT) 

3324 Topeka St. Riverbank, CA 95367 
Attention:   

Contract Administrator 

Endorsement and Certificates of Insurance Required 
The Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees and volunteers  
are included as insureds with regard to damages and defense of claims arising from: (Check  
all that apply) 

Insurer Policy 
No. 

General Liability: (a) activities performed by or on behalf of the Named 
Insured, (b) products and completed operations of the Named Insured, (c) 
premises owned, leased occupied or used by the Named Insured, and/or 
(d) permits issued for operations performed by the Named Insured. {Note: 
MEETS OR EXCEEDS ISO Form # CG 20 10 11 85} 

  

Auto Liability: the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or 
unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Named 
Insured, regardless of whether liability is attributable to the Named Insured 
or a combination of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured, its 
elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. 

  

Other: 
  

Certificates of Insurance Required (no endorsement needed) (Check all that 
apply) 

Insurer Policy 
No. 

Workers Compensation: work performed by employees of the Named 
Insured while those employees are engaged in work under the simultaneous 
directions and control of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured. 

  

Professional Liability: 
  

 

 
PRIMARY/NON-CONTRIBUTORY: This insurance is primary and is not additional to or contributing with any other insurance carried by or 
for the benefit of Additional Insureds. 

 
SEVERABILITY OF INTEREST: The insurance afforded by this policy applies separately to each insured who is seeking coverage or 
against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limit of liability. 

 
PROVISIONS REGARDING THE INSURED'S DUTIES AFTER ACCIDENT OR LOSS: Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of 
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

 
CANCELLATION NOTICE. The insurance afforded by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits 
except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice (ten (10) days if canceled due to non-payment) by regular mail return receipt requested has 
been given to the Additional Insured. Such notice shall be addressed as shown above. 

 
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: The insurer(s) named above agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the DISTRICT, its elected or 
appointed officers, officials, agents, volunteers and employees for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from work performed 
by the Named Insured for the DISTRICT. 

Nothing herein contained shall vary, alter or extend any provision or condition of the Policy other than as above 
stated. SIGNATURE OF INSURER OR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE INSURER 

I,  (print/type name), warrant that I have authority to bind the 
above-named insurance company and by my signature hereon do so bind this company. 



19  

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (original signature required) 

ORGANIZATION: TITLE: 

ADDRESS: 
 

TELEPHONE: ( ) DATE ISSUED: 



20  

EXHIBIT E 

 
LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS 

 

1. Public Works Project/ Prevailing Wage. The work to be performed under this Agreement is for 
“Public Works” within the meaning of Labor Code Sections 1720 to 1861. CONTRACTOR must 
therefore comply with state prevailing wage and labor law (California Labor Code Sections 1720 
to 1780, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, commencing with Section 16000) 
for work performed under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR’s obligations under prevailing wage and 
labor compliance laws include, among other things, to: pay at least the applicable prevailing wage 
and travel and subsistence payments for public works activities performed under this Agreement; 
comply with overtime and working hour requirements; comply with apprenticeship obligations; 
comply with payroll recordkeeping requirements; and comply with other obligations as required by 
law. Copies of the applicable prevailing wage rates are on file with the DISTRICT’s Project Manager, 
and shall be made available to any interested party upon request. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 
the above requirements are included in all its contracts and any lower tier subcontracts for activities 
for the Project. 

2. Registration with Department of Industrial Relations. This project is subject to compliance 
monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. CONTRACTOR must be 
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations under Labor Code section 1725.5 when 
bidding and throughout performance of this agreement. 

3. Wage Rates. 

3(A).  It shall be mandatory upon CONTRACTOR and upon any subcontractor to pay not less than 
the specified rates to all laborers, workers, and mechanics employed in the execution of the 
Contract. It is further expressly stipulated that CONTRACTOR shall, as a penalty to 
DISTRICT, forfeit two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for 
each laborer, worker, or mechanic paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for any work 
done under this Agreement by CONTRACTOR or by any subcontractor; and CONTRACTOR 
agrees to comply with all provisions of Section 1775 of the Labor Code. 

3(B).  The DISTRICT will not recognize any claim for additional compensation because of the 
payment by the CONTRACTOR of any wage rate in excess of the prevailing wage rate set 
forth in the Agreement. The possibility of wage increases is one of the elements to be 
considered by the CONTRACTOR in determining its bid, and will not under any circumstances 
be considered as the basis of a claim against the DISTRICT on the Agreement. 

4. Payroll Records. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor must comply with Labor Code 
Section 1776 and all requirements of contractors stated therein for the maintenance, inspection and 
certification of payroll records. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor who fails to timely 
furnish payroll records or make the records available for inspection will forfeit to the DISTRICT the 
penalty for non-compliance set forth in Labor Code Section 1776 for their respective failure. 

5. Discrimination. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor must comply with the anti 
discrimination requirements of Labor Code Section 1777.6. 



21  

EXHIBIT F 

 
A. Required Provisions On Contract Claim Resolution 

Any claim arising under this contract which the CONTRACTOR wishes to assert against the DISTRICT (“public 
entity”) shall be governed by California Public Contract Code Section 9204. Claims which do not exceed three 
hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) are also subject to the provisions of Article 
1.5 of the California Public Contract Code (commencing with Section 20104). Pursuant to California Public 
Contracts Code Section 9204, claims shall be resolved as follows: 

 
1. (a) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim applies shall conduct a 

reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a 
written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon 
receipt of a claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period 
provided in this subdivision. 

 
(b) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim, pursuant to Document 00 7200 
(General Conditions), Article 12. 

 
(c) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant a written statement 
identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet 
within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by 
registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following 
the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to 
provide the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 

 
(d) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after 
the public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph 
(3) shall apply. 

 
2. (a) If the claimant disputes the public entity’s written response, or if the public entity fails to respond to a claim 

issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing 
sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet 
and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 

 
(b) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any 
portion of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying 
the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an 
undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its 
written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted 
to nonbinding mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs equally. The public 
entity and claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the 
claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a 
mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed 
portion of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection 
with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute 
shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section. 

 
(c) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, 
neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in 
dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to 
the timeframes in this section. 

 
(d) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the mediation conducted 
pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has 
been commenced. 



22  

(e) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes under private arbitration 
or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ 
dispute. 

 
3. Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods described in this 
subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall result in the claim being deemed 

rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the public entity’s failure to have responded to a claim, or 
its failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard 

to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant. 
 

4. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 percent per annum. 
 

5. If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a public entity because 
privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public entity a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf 
or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by 
the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting 
that the claim be presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. 
Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to 
whether the contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did not present the 
claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so. 

 
A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, however, that (1) 
upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to 
the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe 
reasonable change order, claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the 
provisions of this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the 
timeframes and procedures set forth in this section. 

 
Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants available through 
a competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its contractual obligations. 

B. Compliance With Americans With Disabilities Act 

1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), programs, services and 
other activities provided by a public entity to the public, whether directly or through a Contractor, must be 
accessible to the disabled public. CONTRACTOR shall provide the services specified in the Contract Documents 
in a manner that complies with the ADA and any and all other applicable federal, state and local disability rights 
legislation. CONTRACTOR agrees not to discriminate against disabled persons in the provision of services, 
benefits or activities provided under the Contract Documents and further agrees that any violation of this 
prohibition on the part of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents or assigns shall constitute a material breach of 
the Contract Documents. 

C. Compliance With IRCA 

1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that CONTRACTOR, and all subcontractors hired by CONTRACTOR to perform 
services under this Agreement, are aware of and understand the Immigration Reform and Control Act (IRCA). 
CONTRACTOR is and shall remain in compliance with the IRCA and shall ensure that any subcontractors hired 
by CONTRACTOR to perform services under this Agreement are in compliance with the IRCA. In addition, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Owner, its agents, officers and employees, from 
any liability, damages or causes of action arising out of or relating to any claims that CONTRACTOR’s 
employees, or employees of any subcontractor hired by CONTRACTOR, are not authorized to work in the United 
States for CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor and/or any other claims based upon alleged IRCA violations 
committed by CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’s subcontractors.  















2024 Summary by Station

Month Fire 100
Reture/ 

Explosion 200
EMS/ Rescue 

300
Hazardous 

Condition 400
Service Call 

500
Good Intent 600 False Call 700

Severe 
Weather 800

Other              
900

Shift Totals 

Jan-24 19 0 318 5 29 78 30 0 2 481
Feb-24 18 0 276 13 44 61 10 0 3 425
Mar-24 17 1 258 5 40 62 14 0 0 397
Apr-24 29 0 440 4 37 98 15 0 1 624
May-24 0
Jun-24 0
Jul-24 0

Aug-24 0
Sep-24 0
Oct-24 0
Nov-24 0
Dec-24 0

TOTAL 83 1 1292 27 150 299 69 0 6 1927

2024 Total Summary by Apparatus

Month Fire 100
Reture/ 

Explosion 200
EMS/ Rescue 

300
Hazardous 

Condition 400
Service Call 

500
Good Intent 600 False Call 700

Severe 
Weather 800

Other              
900

Shift Totals 

Jan-24 41 0 354 10 32 110 32 0 3 582
Feb-24 52 0 330 23 52 98 13 1 4 573
Mar-24 38 2 330 12 49 109 17 0 0 557
Apr-24 0
May-24 0
Jun-24 0
Jul-24 0

Aug-24 0
Sep-24 0
Oct-24 0
Nov-24 0
Dec-24 0

TOTAL 131 2 1014 45 133 317 62 1 7 1712

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 13.2.A



2024 Admin Totals (Chief, BC, and Training) 

Month Fire 100
Reture/ 

Explosion 200
EMS/ Rescue 

300
Hazardous 

Condition 400
Service Call 

500
Good Intent 600 False Call 700

Severe 
Weather 800

Other              
900

Shift Totals 

Jan-24 9 0 7 2 1 13 0 0 0 32
Feb-24 10 0 7 3 1 10 0 0 0 31
Mar-24 7 0 14 5 3 9 2 0 0 40
Apr-24 0
May-24 0
Jun-24 0
Jul-24 0

Aug-24 0
Sep-24 0
Oct-24 0
Nov-24 0
Dec-24 0

TOTAL 26 0 28 10 5 32 2 0 0 103



March Monthly Station Response Summary by Station and Shift
Report Date Range: April 1 - April 30, 2024

Fire 100
Rupture/ 
Explosion 
200

EMS/ 
Rescue 300

Hazardous 
Condition 
400

Service Call 
500

Good 
Intent 600

False Call 
700

Severe 
Weather 
800

Other          
900

Shift Totals 

Station 21 (Airport)
Shift A 1 0 27 0 1 8 1 0 0 38
Shift B 2 0 29 0 1 6 2 0 0 40
Shift C 1 0 22 1 4 2 1 0 0 31

Total 4 0 78 1 6 16 4 0 0 109

Station 22 (Empire) 
Shift A 0 0 13 0 0 3 0 0 0 16
Shift B 1 0 14 0 0 2 1 0 0 18
Shift C 1 0 19 0 0 3 0 0 0 23

Total 2 0 46 0 0 8 1 0 0 57

Station 23 (Fruityard) 
Shift A 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Shift B 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Shift C 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total 1 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

Station 24 (Waterford) 
Shift A 1 0 18 0 5 1 2 0 0 27
Shift B 3 0 24 0 4 4 0 0 0 35
Shift C 0 0 16 0 0 2 1 0 0 19

Total 4 0 58 0 9 7 3 0 0 81

Station 25 (La Grange) 



Shift A 1 0 3 0 0 2 0 0 0 6
Shift B 0 0 24 0 4 4 0 0 0 32
Shift C 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total 1 0 28 0 4 6 0 0 0 39

Station 26 (Riverbank) 
Shift A 0 0 30 0 4 7 0 0 0 41
Shift B 4 0 32 0 9 6 3 0 0 54
Shift C 0 0 26 1 3 11 3 0 0 44

Total 4 0 88 1 16 24 6 0 0 139

District Totals 
16 0 305 2 35 61 14 0 0 433



March Monthly Apparatus Response Summary by Station and Shift
Report Date Range: March 1 -  March 31, 2024

Fire 100
Rupture/ 
Explosion 
200

EMS/ Rescue 
300

Hazardous 
Condition 400

Service Call 
500

Good Intent 
600

False Call 
700

Severe 
Weather 800

Other          900 Shift Totals 

Station 21 (Airport)
Shift A 6 0 37 0 1 9 1 0 0 54
Shift B 3 0 39 0 4 11 2 0 0 59
Shift C 4 0 32 1 4 2 1 0 0 44

Total 13 0 108 1 9 22 4 0 0 157

Station 22 (Empire) 
Shift A 0 0 14 1 0 3 0 0 0 18
Shift B 1 0 14 1 1 11 1 0 0 29
Shift C 1 0 19 0 0 3 0 0 0 23

Total 2 0 47 2 1 17 1 0 0 70

Station 23 (Fruit Yard)
Shift A 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 5
Shift B 1 0 11 0 1 5 1 0 0 19
Shift C 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Total 2 0 15 0 1 6 1 0 0 25

Station 24 (Waterford) 
Shift A 3 0 20 0 5 3 2 0 0 33
Shift B 0 0 24 0 2 6 0 0 0 32
Shift C 0 0 16 0 0 2 1 0 0 19
Total 3 0 60 0 7 11 3 0 0 84

Station 26 (Riverbank) 
Shift A 0 0 33 0 4 8 0 0 0 45
Shift B 4 0 33 0 9 8 0 3 0 57
Shift C 0 0 26 1 3 11 3 0 0 44
Total 4 0 92 1 16 27 3 3 0 146



District Totals
24 0 322 4 34 83 12 3 0 482



March Monthly Admin Response Summary by Shift
Report Date Range: March 1 - March 31, 2024

Fire 100
Reture/ 
Explosion 
200

EMS/ Rescue 
300

Hazardous 
Condition 400

Service Call 
500

Good Intent 
600

False Call 
700

Severe 
Weather 
800

Other    900 Shift Totals 

Battalion 2
Shift A 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 5
Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
Shift C 1 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4
Total 2 0 2 0 0 7 0 0 0 11

Battalion 202
Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Battalion 204
Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training 3
Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift B 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Training 4
Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Prevention 2
Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

District Total
2 0 3 0 0 7 0 0 0 12



  
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
 
TO:   President Bernardi and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Captain Tim Johnson, Training Officer 
 
SUBJECT: April Training Report 
 
DATE: May 2, 2024 
 
Completed Training for April 
•Total Hours of Training – 1,969 hours. 
 
April Training.  
• MST crews completed RT130 training at Woodward Reservoir 
• The MST Engineer Academy has been completed. A total of 22 MST personnel went through 
the academy. Four of the personnel were from our agency. Congratulations to Engineer Leslie, 
Engineer Baker, Firefighter Tobin, and Firefighter Voss for completing the academy.  
•Training Hours Summary: 

 
May Training  
•EMS Quarterly Training is being held at station 22. Training and Skill Signoffs will be for 
Trauma Assessment, Spinal Movement Restriction, Hemorrhagic Control, and Shock 
Management.  
•MST crews are enrolling in an MJC course as part of our roll out for our training agreement 
with the MJC/RFTC. The ISA Program is similar to the CalJAC program and will include all 
personnel not enrolled in CalJAC.  
•Probationary Firefighters and their crews are preparing for their seven-month test which is 
scheduled in June. 

 

Topic  Hours Topic  Hours 
Policy and Procedure Review 55 Annual Mandated Training 26 
Building Construction 18 Aerial Ops Training 12 
Driver Training 68 Emergency Operations Training 26 
EMS Training  86 Fire Prevention Training 29 
Fire Suppression Training 69 Fire Fighter Survival  18 
Forcible Entry 33 Hose Operations 86 
Ladder 37 Paramedic School 328 
Peer Support 98 Incident Planning (Pre/Post) 21 
RT-130 – Wildland Refresher 126 Tech Rescue 81 
Vehicle Extrication 36   

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us  

amccormick@scfpd.us
Typewritten text
Item 13.2.B


